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Mobile No.: 9896061320

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Members of,
SAATVIK GREEN ENGERGY PRIVATE LIMITED,

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of SAATVIK GREEN ENGERGY PRIVATE
LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the Parent”) and its subsidiaries (the Parent Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as “the Group”) comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flow and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other
explanatory information {hereinafter referred to as the “Consolidated Financial Statement”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
prescribed under Séection 133 of the Act (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India,
of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2024, and their consolidated profit, their
consolidated total comprehensive profit, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated changes in
equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“SAs”) as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s Board of Director’s Report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to the subsidiaries are
traced from their audited financial statements. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The Parent Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the accounting
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (India Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their respective entities or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e lIdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent Company has adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern.
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If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the consolidated financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatement in the financial statements

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal financial control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Group, including
relevant records relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been
kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in the
paragraph 1(h)(v) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014;

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
Comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

d) In our opinicn, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent Company as on
March 31, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;



f)

g)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A” which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent and subsidiary companies
incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of internal financial control s with reference to consolidated financial statements of
those companies;

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act, in
our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the provisions of section 197

read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the Company as it is a private limited company,
and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its
consolidated financial position of the Group — Refer Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements;

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended March 31, 2024.

iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred by the Company to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The respective managements of the Parent Company, and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
have represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note
47{vi) to the consolidated financial statement, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Parent Company or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective
Parent Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The respective managements of the Parent Company, its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 47(vi) to
the consolidated financial statement, no funds have been received by the respective Parent
Company or any of such subsidiaries from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Parent Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (a) and (b) of Rule 11(e) contain any material misstatement.



v) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Parent Company and two subsidiaries
incorporated in India has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the
financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
except in respect of maintenance of payroll records wherein the accounting software did not
have the audit trail feature enabled throughout the year. Further, the audit trail facility has been
operating throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with.

In case of remaining three subsidiaries incorporated in India, the audit trail feature was not
enabled during the year.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 01,
2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on
preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for
the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

vi) There is no dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Parent and Subsidiary
companies during the year.

With respect to the matter specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11)
of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, according to the information and explanations given to us and
based on the CARO report issued by us for the Parent and subsidiaries including in the consolidated
financial statements to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that no qualifications or
adverse remarks by the companies included | the consolidated financial statements.

Place: Ambala Cantt For Jayant Bansal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 004694N

Date: 30" September 2024

L

A JAYANT BANSAL
~—— (PARTNER)
Membership No.: 086478

UDIN: 24086478BKAROJ1785



ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SAATVIK GREEN ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Saatvik Green Energy Private
Limited, (“the Parent Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements of the Parent and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India,
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, specified
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued
by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statement of the
Parent’s and its subsidiary companies which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
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generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to consolidated financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Parent and its
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material respects, adequate
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024,
based on the criteria for internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements established by
the respective Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Place: Ambala Cantt For Jayant Bansal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Ragistration No. 0046

Date: 30" September, 2024

*"JAYANT BANSAL
(PARTNER)

Membership No.: 086478
UDIN: 24086478BKAR0OJ1785



Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

CIN : U40106HR2015PTCO75578

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Rt NG As at As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 1,006.34 412,13 214.53
(b} Capital work in progress 4 328.65 - -
(¢) Right-of-use assets ; 5 162.38 88.23 107.45
(d) Financial assets
(i} Other fipancial assets 12 44,09 27.39 24.47
(e} Deferred tax assets [net) 32 77.94 29.18 16.57
(f} Other non-current assets 13 176.71 12.54 22,99
Total non-current assets 1,796.11 569.47 386.01
{2) Current assets *
(a) inventories 6 2,205.08 1,322.02 1,275,53
{b) Financlal assets
(i} Investments i 100.00 - -
{it) Trade receivables B 1,767.45 209.21 109.15
(iif) Cash and cash equivalents 9 123.32 132.59 0.89
(iv) Bank balances othar than (jii} above 10 50.20 - 0.70
(v) Loans 11 18.72 15.82 11,00
(vi) Other financial assets i 12 163.19 3.23 2.00
{c} Current tax assets (net} 21 i 8.02 - -
(d) Other current assets 13 648.29 377.65 488.62
Total current assets 5,084.27 2,060.52 1,887.89
Total assets 6,880.38 2,629,99 2,273.90
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 14 33.80 33.80 33.80
{b) Other equity 15 1,172.83 168.93 122.35
Equity attributable to owners of the holding company 1,206.73 202.73 156.15
{c) Non-controlling interests 0.68 - -
Total equity 1,207.41 202.73 156.15
LIABILITIES
(1)} Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 16 671.11 318.45 89.85
(il) Lease liabilities 5 127.59 60.73 85.08
{b) Provisions 19 34.24 21.10 13.08
{c) Deferred tax liabilities (net} 32 0.23 - -
(d) Other non-current liabilities 22 239.91 92,72 42.15
Total non-curvent liabilities 1,073.08 493.00 230.16
(2) Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 1,963.09 1,126.47 §29.91
(i) Lease liabilities 5 36.49 24.35 14.75
(iif) Trade payables 17 1,843.15 673.18 730.32
(iv) Other financial liabllities 18 131.30 18.76 18.28
(b) Provisions 19 122.46 2.26 1.05
{c) Contract liabilities 20 235.90 47.32 170.46
{d) Current tax liabilities (net) 21 213.14 6.08 15,93
(e) Other current liabilities 22 54.36 35.84 6.89
Total current liabilities 4,599.89 1,934.26 1,887.59
Total liabilities 5,672.97 2,427.26 2,117.75
Total equity and liabilities 6,880.38 2,629.99 2,273.90

Refer note 1 and 2 for summary of material accounting policies
The accompanying nates from 3 to 49 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

Forlayant Bansal & Co,
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited
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\ ‘Partner rectar
Membership no. 086478 : 08290827 DIN: 07282824
Place:rAmbala Cantt Place: Ambala Cantt Place: Ambala Cantt

Date: 30 September 2024 Date: 30 September 2024 Date: 30 September 2024



Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

CIN : U40106HR2015PTC075578

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note Year ended Year ended
No. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(1) Income
(a) Revenue from operations 23 10,879.65 6,085.88
(b) Other income 24 92.16 90.39
Total income 10,971.81 6,176.27
(2) Expenses
(a) Cost of materials consumed 25 6,553.02 5,558.25
(b) Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 26 2,309.49 64.18
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, wark-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 27 (608.40) (211.17)
(d) Employee benefits expense 28 170.27 101.26
(e) Finance costs 29 142.32 105.87
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 30 107.39 66.15
(g) Other expenses 31 978.99 424.09
Total expenses 9,653.08 6,109.63
(3) Profit before tax (1-2) 1,318.73 66.64
(4) Tax expense:
(i} Current tax 32 362.85 31.73
(i1} Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 32 (0.29) (0.21)
(iii} Deferred tax 32 (48.55) (12.33)
Total tax expense 314.01 19.19
(5) Profit for the year (3-4) 1,004.72 47.45
(6) Other comprehensive income ('ocr) 33
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
- Remeasurement gain / {loss) on defined benefit plan (0.01) (1.08)
- Income tax expense relating to the above 0.00 0.27
{ii} Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Net loss due to foreign currency translation differences (0.14) -
- Income tax expense relating to the above - -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax {0.15) (0.81)
(7) Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (5+6) 1,004.57 46.64
(8) Profit for the year attributable to
Owners of the Group 1,004.15 47.45
Non-controlling interests Q.57 -
1,004.72 47.45
(9) Total other comprehensive income for the year attributable to
Owners of the Group {0.15) (0.81)
Non-controlling interests 2 &
(0.15) (0.81)
(10} Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to
Owners of the Group 1,004.00 46.64
Non-controlling interests 0.57 -
1,004.57 46.64
(11) Earnings per equity share (Face value of %10/- each)
(a) Basic EPS 34 297.08 14.04
(b} Diluted EPS 34 297.08 14.04

Refer note 1 and 2 for summary of material accounting policies

The accompanying notes from 3 to 49 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements,

As per our report of even date attached
ForJayantBansal & Co.
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Date: 30 September 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

: 08290827
Place: Ambala Cantt
Date: 30 September 2024

Diréctor

DIN: 07282824

Place: Ambala Cantt
Date: 30 September 2024
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Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

CIN : U40106HR2015PTCO75578

Consolidated statement of cash flow for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Income frem government grant
Interest expense on debt and borrowings ;
Interest cost on lease liabilities
Provision for doubtful debts
Provision for warranty and replacement expense
Provision for [itigation
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange loss [net)
Gain on sale of fixed assets
Gain an lease [iabilities
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

Increase in inventories

Increase in trade receivables

Increase in other financial assets

Decrease in other current assets

Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(Decrease) in other current financial liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in contract liabilities

Increase in other current liabilities

Increase in provisions

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

B. Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of investments
Acquisition of praperty, plant and equipment and other intangible assets (including
Proceeds fram sale of property, plant and equipment
Right of use asset entered
Investment in fixed deposit
Loan given to related parties
Interest on fixed deposit received
Net cash inflow / outflow due to business combination and asset acquisition

Net cash (used in} investing activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Interest paid
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities
Net cash generated from financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B8+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of following
Cash an hand

Balance with banks

Cash and cash equivalents

Notes

1,318.73 66.64
(5.55) (0.48)
(79.53) (83.77)
y 114.40 7231
9.73 8.49
0.84 =
66.03 5.08
62.75 2
7279 29.21
34.61 36.94
21.29 37.54
. (0.15)
(0.10) .
1,615.99 172.81
(842.67) (46.49)
(1,577.74) (137.60)
(174.01) (3.45)
13.34 121.42
1,181.95 (57.14)
13.46 (0.05)
188.58 (123.14)
174.88 163.29
4.41 234
598.19 91.99
(162.47) (41.65)
435.72 50.34
(100.00) @
(600.51) (237.68)
: 3.29
(2.02) (0.47)
(50.20) 0.05
(1.12) (4.60)
1.54 0.21
57.89 =
(694.42) (239.20)
(114.83) (71.84)
1,421.96 765.85
(1,020.33) (340.69)
(37.37) (32.76)
249.43 320.56
(9.27) 131.70
132.59 0.89
123.32 132.59
0.51 071
2211 116.85
100.70 15.03
123.32 132.59

1. Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set aut in the Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows” as specified in the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

Refer note 1 and 2 for summary of material accounting policies
The accompanying notes from 3 to 49 are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

(CIN: U40106HR2015PTC075578)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited ("the Company" or the “Parent Company”), is a private limited company domiciled
and registered in India under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The registered office of the Company is located at Vill. Dubli, V.P.O Bihta Tehsil Ambala, Haryana, India.

The Parent Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are primarily engaged in the
manufacturing of Solar Photovoltaic Modules and also providing Engineering, Procurement, and Construction (EPC)
services in this regard.

The Consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on 30
Septernber, 2024,

2. Material accounting policies
2.1 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The Consolidated financial statements (“financial statements”) of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013,
(Ind AS compliant Schedule Il1), as applicable to the Consolidated financial statements.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, are the first financial statements prepared in compliance
with Ind AS. The date of transition to Ind AS has been considered as April 01, 2022 to facilitate comparison of previous
year numbers. Earlier, the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023, had been prepared in
accordance with the accounting standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (“Previous
GAAP”) and other relevant provisions of the Act. The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 have
accordingly been restated in accordance with Ind AS provisions. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effects of the
transition have been summarized in Note 44,

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities
which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

a) Derivative financial instruments, and
b) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments)

The Consolidated financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest millions (INR
000,000), except when otherwise indicated. '

The Group has prepared its financial statements on the basis that it will continue to operate as a going concern. The
Consolidated financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. In addition, the
Group presents an additional balance sheet at the beginning of the preceding period due to transition to Ind AS.




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

(CIN: U40106HR2015PTC075578)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

The Ind AS consolidated financial statements as at 1 April 2022 represents the standalone Ind AS financial statement of
Saatvik Green Energy private limited as the Company was not having any subsidiary as at that date.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

Consolidated financial statements of the group incorporates financial statements of parent company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved where the Company:

a. has power over the investee.

b. is exposed to, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

c. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income from the date
the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidation procedure for subsidiary:

(a) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding
together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, incomes, expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-group
balances and intragroup transactions.

(b) Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognised in assets, such as Inventory and
Property, Plant and Equipment, are eliminated in full.

(c) In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year. All
assets and liabilities are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year. Any exchange difference arising on
consolidation is recognised in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (FCTR).

(d) The carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary is offset (eliminated) against the parent’s
portion of equity in each subsidiary.

(e) Non-Controlling Interest’s share of profit/loss of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted
against the income of the Group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the Company

(f)  Non-Controlling Interest’s share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

For details of subsidiaries consolidated, refer note 45.




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

(CIN: U40106HR2015PTC075578)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

2.3 Summary of material accounting policies
(a) Business combinations under common control

Common control business combination means a business combination involving entities or businesses in which all the
combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the same party both before and after the business
combination, and that control is not transitory.

The Company accounts for its business combination under common control using pooling of interest method of
accounting as per Appendix C of Ind AS 103. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that
meet the definition for recognition are recognized at their carrying amount at the acquisition date.

Transferor’s reserves are preserved and are appeared in the financial statements of the transferee in the same form in
which they appear in the financial statements of the transferor. Acquisition date is the beginning of the preceding period
in case the common control is established prior to such date. However, if business combination had occurred after such
date, the acquisition date is considered only from that date.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the combining entities or businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they had been combined from the date when the combining entities
or businesses first came under the control of the controlling party.

The consolidated income statement includes the results of each of the combining entities or businesses from the earliest
date presented or since the date when the combining entities or businesses first came under the common control,
where there is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been combined at the previous balance sheet date or when they first came under common control, whichever is shorter.

Transaction costs, including professional fees, registration fees, costs of furnishing information to shareholders, costs or
losses incurred in combining operations of the previously separate businesses, etc., incurred in relation to the common
control combination that is to be accounted for by using merger accounting is recognised as an expense in the year in
which it is incurred.

(b) Current and non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

= Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

* Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

" Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or _

*  Cash orcash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.
\/ -




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited
{CIN: U40106HR2015PTC075578)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
{All amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

= Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cysle.

* Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

= Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

= There is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The Group has identified twelve months period as its operating cycle.

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a
major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement

if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciatjon is provided on a pro rata basis on the straight-line method over the useful lives of assets, which is as stated
in Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013 or based on technical evaluation made by the Group. The Management’s
estimates of the useful lives for various categories of items of Property, Plant and Equipment are given below:

Assets Useful Life
Computers 3
Servers 6
Electrical Installations and Equipment 10
Factory Building 30
Furniture and Fittings , 5
Laboratory Equipment's 5
Office Equipment 5
Plant and Machinery (Solar power generating unit) 25
Plant and Machinery (others) 15
Vehicle 8




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

(CIN: U40106HR2015PTC075578)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

The useful lives of the assets specified under the Schedule Il are based on their single shift working. However, where the
Group estimated the useful life of an assets on single shift basis at the beginning of the year but uses the assets on
double or triple shift during the year, then the depreciation expense is increased by 50 or 100 per cent as the case may
be for that period.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized, is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

For transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and
equipment recognised as of April 01, 2022 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying
value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

(d) Capital work in progress

Cost of material, erection charges and other expenses incurred for assets in the course of construction are capitalised
in the assets under Capital work in progress net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. At the point when an asset is
operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment and depreciation commences.

(e) Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is or contains a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee )
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases

of low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.

(i) Right-of-use assets

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized and initial direct costs incurred, if any. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited
(CIN: U40106HR2015PTC075578)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in Rs Million, uniess otherwise stated)

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in note (e) Impairment of non-
financial assets.

(ii) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments.

In calculating the present value of lease paynﬁents, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made.

(iii) Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment
(i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the |lease
term.

(f) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

(CIN: U40106HR2015PTC075578)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
{All amounts in Rs Million, uniess otherwise stated)

(i) Raw materials: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in brmglng the inventories to their present
location and condltlon Cost is determined on first in, first out (FIFO) basis.

(ii) Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and 3 proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity excluding borrowing costs. Cost is determined
on first in, first out (FIFO) basis.

(iii) Traded goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out (FIFO) basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

{h) Revenue from contract with customers

The Group earns revenue primarily from the following major sources:
® Sale of products (comprise of manufacture and sale of solar photovoltaic modules); and
= Income from rendering Engineering, Procurernent and Construction services

Revenue from contract with customers is recognized when control of a product or service is transferred to a customer
at an amount which reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those products
and services, and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group has generally concluded that it is
principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the
customer.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts
with customers are provided in Note 2.5.

(i) Sale of products

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at a point in time when control of the product is transferred to the
customer, generally at on delivery of the goods to the customer or the carrier at the factory gate, as agreed in the
contract.

Revenue is adjusted for variable consideration such as discounts, rebates, refunds or other similar items in a contract
when they are highly probable to be provided. The amount of revenue excludes any amount collected on behalf of third
parties.

In revenue arrangements with multiple performance obligations, the Group accounts for individual products and
services separately if they are distinct — i.e. if a product or service is separately identifiable from other items in the
arrangement and if a customer can benefit from it. The consideration is allocated between separate products and
services in the arrangement based on their stand-alone selling prices.

VA "




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

(CIN: U40106HR2015PTC075578)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
{All amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

(ii) Sale of services

The Group renders Engineering, Procurement and Construction (“EPC”) services to its customers.

Revenue from EPC contracts is recognised as the performance obligation is satisfied progressively over the contract
period, using percentage of completion method. The Group's progress towards completion is measured based on the
proportion that the contract expenses incurred to date bear to the estimated total contract expenses. Payment is due
as per the achievement of contractual milestones.

The estimates of contract cost and the revenue thereon are reviewed periodically by management and the cumulative
effect of any changes in estimates is recognised in the period in which such changes are determined. Where it is probable
that the contract expenses will exceed total revenues from a contract, the expected loss is recognised immediately as
an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Where the profit from a contract cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is only recognised equalling the expenses
incurred to the extent that it is probable that the expenses will be recovered.

(iii) Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to which
it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

(iv) Warranty obligations

The Group typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time of sale, as required by
law. These assurance-type warranties are accounted for under Ind AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets. Refer to the accounting policy on warranty provisions in Note (m).

{v) Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from
the customer. The Group’s refund liabilities arise from customers’ right of return and volume rebates. The Group
updates its estimates of refund liabilities at the end of each reporting period.

(vi} Contract balances

a. Contract assets




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

{CIN: U40106HR2015PTC075578)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
{All amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from EPC services because the receipt of consideration is
conditional on acceptance from the customer. Upon acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract
assets is reclassified to trade receivables.

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of financial assets in
section (1) Financial instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

b. Trade receivables

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required
before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section () Financial
instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

¢. Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

(i) Employee benefits

(i) Short term benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages, salaries and annual leaves in the period
the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service. Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

(ii) Other long-term employee benefits

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method at the reporting date. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to

the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet as the entity does not have an unconditional
right to defer the settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

(iii) Retirement benefits plan

a. Defined contribution plan \/




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

{CIN: U40106HR2015PTC075578)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund
scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for
service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme
is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid.

b. Defined benefit plan

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit
or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:
* The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
" The date that the Group recognizes related restructuring costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognizes

the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the Consolidated statement of profit and

loss:

® Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

* Net interest expense or income.

(iv) Termination benefits

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of
the termination benefit and when the entity recognises any related restructuring costs.

(j) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

I. Financial assets
a. |Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value through
profit or loss., [




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

(CIN: U40106HR2015PTC075578)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

b. Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:
®* Financial asset at amortised cost
= Equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

¢. Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

® theassetis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

" the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost
includes trade receivables, and loan to related parties and security deposits.

d. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited
(CIN: U40106HR2015PTC075578)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024
(All amounts in Rs Million, unless otherwise stated)

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair Value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCl to Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

e. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and investment in quoted mutual funds.
f. Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Consolidated balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

g. Impairment of financial assets

Further disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets are also provided in the Note (h) - Trade receivables and
contract assets.

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for trade receivables and contract assets. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate.

The Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a
provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 45 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering
the contractual cash flows.
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h. Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no
reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities.

ll. Financial liabilities

a) Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and
derivative financial instruments.

b) Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
*= Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

* Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

¢) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

Financiai liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.
This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.

d) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)
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This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This
category generally applies to borrowings.

e) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

Ill. Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as currency swaps, to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is

positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

IV. Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

V. Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

VI. Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Consolidated balance sheet if

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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(k) Foreign currencies

(i) Functional and presentation currency

The Group’s Consolidated financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Group’s functional currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the respective company’s at functional currency spot rates at
the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the Group uses average rate if the

average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of
exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in the Statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense, or income (or part of
it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date
of the transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration.

If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment or
receipt of advance consideration,

(I) Taxes

Tax expense for the period comprises current tax and deferred tax.

a) Current tax (including tax for earlier years)

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income. '
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (in other

comprehensive income). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction in OCI.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
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regulations are subject to interpretation and considers whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The Group shall reflect the effect of uncertainty for each uncertain tax treatment by using
either most likely method or expected value method, depending on which method predicts better resolution of the
treatment.

b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

(i) Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences;

(b) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

(ii) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised, except:

(a)  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences;

(b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
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Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, the Group relies on the same forecast assumptions used elsewhere
in the financial statements and in other management reports, which, among other things, reflect the potential impact
of climate-related development on the business, such as increased cost of production as a result of measures to reduce
carbon emission.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (in other
comprehensive income). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction in OCI.

(iii) Offsetting of Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity which intends either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

(m) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

(i) General criterion for provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

(ii) Provision for warranties

The Group gives a warranty to its customers for 25 years on solar modules designed, manufactured and supplied by the
Group. In order to meet the expected outflow of resources against future warranty claims, the Group makes a provision
for warranty. This provision for warranty represents the expected future outflow of resources against claims for
performance shortfall on account of manufacturing deficiencies over the assured warranty life.
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(ii) Contingent liabilities

The Group does not recognise a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Financial Statements as per
requirements of Ind AS 37.

(iv) Contingent assets

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by- the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. The
Group does not recognize the contingent asset in its consolidated financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. Where an inflow of economic benefits are probable, the Group
disclose a brief description of the nature of contingent assets at the end of the reporting period. However, when the
realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and the Group recognize such
assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date.

{n) Government grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognizes in the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the years in which the
Group recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate or when performance
obligations are met.

Government grants and subsidies whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase, construct or otherwise
acquire non-current assets are recognized as deferred revenue in the balance sheet which is disclosed as deferred
government grant receivable and transferrad to the Statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over the expected
useful life of the related assets.

Government grants and subsidies related to the income are deferred which is disclosed as deferred revenue arising from
government grant in the balance sheet and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

(o) Other income
Interest income is recognised, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists, on a time

proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate, using the effective interest
rate method (EIR).
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(p) Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

® Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
= Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
= Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly chservable
= Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

= Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions
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= Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

* Investment in unquoted equity shares

* Property, plant and equipment under revaluation model

* Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

(q) Operating segments

The Board of Directors is the Group’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or “CODM’ within the meaning of Ind AS 108
‘Operating Segments’. CODM monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements.

(r) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, and short-term deposits with an

original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(s) Statement of cashflows
Statement of Cash flows is prepared as per indirect method prescribed in the Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’.

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts are considered, as they are an integral part of the Group’s cash managemant.

(t} Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

2.4 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(a) New and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated
31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023.

The Group applied for the first-time these amendments.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8
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The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies
and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techmques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates.

The amendments had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(i) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the
requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures,

The amendments have had an impact on the Group’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurement,
racognition or presentation of any items in the Group’s financial statements.

(ii) Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to
transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The Group previously recognized for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these amendments, the Group
has recognized a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability in relation to its
right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset as per the requirements of of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in
the balance sheet. There was also no impact on the opening retained earnings as at April 01, 2022.

(b) Standards and amendments issued but not yet effective as at 31 March 2024

(i). Ind AS 117 - Insurance contracts

Anew standard Ind AS 117 — Insurance contracts has been notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, establishing the
principles recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the
Standard. The objective of Ind AS 117 is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that faithfully represents
those contracts.

Various standards have been amended accordingly to provide for guidance for aspects in relation to Insurance contracts.

(ii) Accounting for sale and leaseback transaction the books of seller - lessee — Amendments to Ind AS 116

Insertion of guidance on accounting treatment of sale and leaseback transactions. After the lease start date, the seller-
lessee should use guidance under Ind AS 116 for the right-of-use asset from the leaseback and for the lease liability from
the leaseback. When applying the relevant guidance, the seller-lessee must calculate ‘lease payments’ or ‘revised lease
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payments’ in a way that prevents recognizing any gain or loss related to the retained right of use. However, this does
not stop the seller-lessee from recording gains or losses related to the partial or full termination of a lease.

2.5 Critical Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of the Group’s Consolidated financial statements reguires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

(Aj Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated financial statements:

(i) Leases
a) Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by
an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate
the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That
is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.
After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

b) Determining the incremental borrowing rate

The Greup cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-
alone credit rating).

(ii) Revenue recognition :
/ oz ¥ 2
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The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing of
revenue from contracts with customers:

a) Identifying performance obligations in sale of manufactured products

The Group provides transportation services on behalf of the customer, bundled together with the sale of products to a
customer.

The Group determined that both the manufactured products and transportation services are capable of being distinct.
The fact that the transportation cost is pass through cost from the vendor on a stand-alone basis indicates that the
customer can benefit from both products on their own. The Group also determined that the promises to transfer the
manufactured product and transportation cost are distinct within the context of the contract. In addition, the product
and transportation are not highly interdependent or highly interrelated, because the Group would be able to transfer
the product even if the customer declined transportation cost.

Consequently, the Group allocated a portion of the transaction price to the manufactured product and transportation
cost based on relative stand-alone selling prices.

b) Revenue recognition for Engineering, Procurement, and Construction contracts

Revenue and costs in respect of construction contracts are recognized by reference to stage of completion of the
contract activity at the end of the reporting period, measured based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for
work performed to date relative to the estimated total contract costs. The Group estimates the total cost of the project
at each period end. These estimates are based on the rates agreed with vendors/sub-contractors and management’s
best estimates of the costs that would be incurred for the completion of project based on past experience and/or
industry data. These estimates are re-assessed at each period end. Variations in contract works, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably, and its receipt is considered probable.
When it is probable that total contract cost will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an
expense immediately.

{B) Estimates
(a) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefit)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and the present value of the
gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.
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The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds where remaining maturity of such
bond correspond to expected term of defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval
in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future
inflation rates.

(b) Useful life of property, plant and equipment

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment is based on a number of factors including the effects of
obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known
technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows
from the asset.

The Group reviews at the end of each reporting date the useful life of plant and equipment.
(c) Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with Ind AS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. The evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has
required best judgment by management regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss. Should circumstances
change following unforeseeable developments, this likelihood could alter.

(d) Income taxes

Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for current and deferred tax, including amount expected
to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions.

(e) Provision for expected credit loss of trade receivables and contract assets

The measurement of expected credit loss on financial assets is based on the evaluation of collectability and the
management’s judgement considering external and internal sources of information. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of the loans / receivables having regard to, the past collection
history of each party and ongoing dealings with these parties, and assessment of their ability to pay the debt on
designated dates.
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Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

CIN : U40106HR2015PTC075578

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
[All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

4 Capital work in progress ('CWIP')

a. Particulars Amount

Deemed cost

As at 1 April 2022 -

Additions 2

Capitalised during the year . = .

As at 31 March 2023 -
Additions 328.65
Capitalised during the year -

As at 31 March 2024 328.65

b. CWIP ageing schedule

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars

More than
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Total
3 years
Projects in progress
As at 31 March 2024 328.65 - - - 328.65
As at 31 March 2023 - - - - -
As at 1 April 2022 = E q = =
Note:

i. There is no project the completion of which is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan during the year ended 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and as on
April 12022.

il. All CWIP projects are running as per schedule and no project has been suspended during the year ended 31 March 2024, 31 March 2023 and as on 1 April 2022.
iii. CWIP comprises of new manufacturing unit and building being constructed in India.

iv. A portion of the Group's CWIP is subject to pledge (charges) to secure the bank loans (Refer note 39).




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

CIN : U40106HR2015PTC075578

Notes forming part of the C ed financial stat: its for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

5 Leases

The Group has lease contracts for various items of Plant and machinery, land and other immovable properties used in its operations and management of day to day Group activities.
Generally, the lease terms for plant a2nd machinery is between 4 to 5 years, land is for 27 years and other immovable property is for 3 to 9 years. '

The Group's obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor's title to the leased assets. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets and same
contracts require the Group to maintain certain security deposit with the lessor.

The Group also has certain leases of immovable properties with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Group applies the ‘short-term lease’ recognition exemptions for these leases.

a. Carrying value of right-of-use [ROU) assets and movement thereof during the year:

Particulars Plant and Machinery Land Buildings Total

Gross Carrying Amount

As at 1 April 2022 108.65 - - 108.65
Additions 0.41 - 9.58 ' 9.99
Disposals/adjustments of assets during the year - - - -

As at 31 March 2023 109.06 - 9.58 118.64
Additions : - 16.02 94.57 110.59
Disposals/adjustments of assets during the year - - (3.66) (3.66)

As at 31 March 2024 109.06 16.02 100.49 225.57

Accumulated depreciation

As at 1 April 2022 1.20 - - 1.20
Charge for the year 27.48 - 1.73 29.21
Disposals/adjustments of assets during the year -

As at 31 March 2023 28.68 - 1.73 3041
Charge for the year 27.60 0.24 6.77 3461
Disposals/adjustments of assets during the year - - (1.83) (1.83)

As at 31 March 2024 56.28 0.24 6.67 63.19

Net carrying amount

As at 1 April 2022 - - 107.45 107.45
As at 31 March 2023 - 7.85 80.38 88.23
As at 31 March 2024 15.78 93.82 52.78 162.38

b. Carrying value of lease liabilities and movement thereof during the year:

Particul As at As at
articlote 31March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 85.08 99.83
Additions 108.57 + 852
Accretion of Interest 9.73 8.49
Payment {37.37) (32.76)
Derecognition of lease liabilities {1.93) -
Closing balance 164.08 85.08




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited
CIN : U40106HR2015PTC075578

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

.

Current and non-current classification of closing balances of lease liabilities:

Particulars

31 March 2024

. As at As at As at
Particulars g
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Non-current lease liabilities 127.59 60.73 85.08
Current lease liabilities 36.49 24.35 14.75
Total 164.08 85.08 99.83
Maturities profile of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:
z As at As at As at
Particulars .
31 March 2024 31March 2023 1 April 2022
Not later than one year 49.33 30.95 32.07
Later than ane year and not later than five years 105.63 66.98 90.95
Later than five years 89.60 - -
Total 244.56 97.92 123.02
. Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss for the year:
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

Depreciation expense on right-of-use asset 34.61 29.21
Interest expense on lease liabilities 9.73 8.49
Expense relating to short-term leases (included In other expenses as rent expense) 7.48 3.05
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets 3 -
Total 51.82 40.75
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Cash flows
Partikiilars Year ended Year ended
a

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash outflow for leases 37.37 32.76
Total 37.37 32.76

. The Group has not entered into operating leases on any of its PPE.

Reconciliation of lease liabilities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the Statement of Cash Flows:

Opening balance

Cash flows during the year

Non Cash flows

Closing balance

Particulars
Additions Deletion Others*

As at 31 March 2024
Lease liahilities 85.08 (37.37) 116.37 164.08
Total liabilities from financing activities 85.08 (37.37) 116.37 164.08
As at 31 March 2023
Lease liabilities 99.83 (32.76) 18.01 85.08
Total liabilities from financing activities 99.83 (32.76) 18.01 85.08
Non cash investing activities ROU

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

ROU additions during the year 108.57 9.52

&




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

CIN : U40106HR2015PTCO75578

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
[All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

6 Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)

Particulars Asat As at As at
31March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

a. Raw materials 1,116.89 846.27 1,014.32
(Including goads in transit for 31 March 2024: INR 411 million, 31 March 2023: INR 501 million and 1

April 2022; INR 570 million)

b. Work-in-progress 38.81 27.46 22.23
c. Finished goods 421.61 441.54 235.60
d. Stock-in-Trade 616.98 - -
{Including goods in transit for 31 March 2024: INR 437 million, 31 March 2023: Niland 1 April 2022: Nil)

e, Stores and spares 10.79 6.75 3.38
Total 2,205.08 1,322.02 1,275.53
Notes:

i. Inventories have been pledged against borrowings (Refer nate 39).
ii. The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes INR 1.71 million (31 March 2023: INR NIL, 1 April 2022; INR NIL} in respect of write downs of inventories to net realisable

value.
7 Investments
As at As at As at
Particular:
Articulare 3LMarch2024 31 March2023 1 April 2022
Current
Quoted investments (measured at FVTPL)
Investment In mutual funds 100.00 - -
Total 100.00 - -
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments 100,00 - -
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 100.00 - -
8 Trade receivables
Particulars Asat As at As at
& 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivables from contract with customers 1,769.91 211.27 111.21
1,7659.91 211.27 111.21
Less: Expected credit loss allowance (2.48) (2.06) (2.06)
Total 1,767.45 209.21 109.15
a. Break-up of security details
Particulars As at As at As at
i 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Trade receivables considered goad — secured 188.16 - -
Trade receivables considered good — unsecured 1,579.29 209.21 109.15
Trade receivables - credit impaired 246 2.06 2.06
1,769.91 211.27 111.21
Less: Expected credit lass allowance (2.48) (2.08) (2.06)
Total 1,767.45 209.21 109.15
Notes:

i. In general, trade receivables are nan-interest bearing and the average credit period is between 30 to 45 days except some specific cases where the Group has charged interest.

ii. Trade receivables have been pledged against borrowing {Refer note 39).

fii. No trade or other receivables are due from directers or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other persan, nor any trade or other receivable are due from
firms or private companies respectively in which any directoris a partner, a director or a member.
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CIN : U40106HR2015PTC075578

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Allamounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

b. Movement in the expected credit loss allowance

Particulars ' Avat ' Aray

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 2.06 2.06
Expected credit loss allowance on trade recelvables 0.84 -
Less: Utilised from provision of doubtful debts {0.44) (0.00)
Balance at end of the year 2.46 2.06

n

Trade receivables ageing schedule

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Nat due Less than 6 months — 1.2 years PE— More than 3 Tatal
6 Months 1year ¥ ¥ years
As at 31 March 2024
a. Undisputed trade receivables
- Considered good 96.77 1,496.82 173.86 - - - 1,767.45
- Credit impaired - - - 0.40 2.06 - 2.46
b. Disputed trade receivables
- Considered good - - - . - . -
Total (a+b) 96.77 1,496.82 173.86 0.40 2.06 = 1,769.91
Less: Expected credit lass allowance - - - (0.40) (2.06) - (2.46)
Total 96.77 1,496.82 173.86 d - = 1,767.45
As at 31 March 2023
a. Undisputed trade receivables
- Cansidered good 157.76 49.94 1.49 0.02 3 - 209.21
- Credit impaired - = - 2.06 - s 2.06
b. Disputed trade receivables
- Considered good - - - - - -
- Credit impaired - - - - - - -
Total (a+b) : 157.76 49.94 1.49 2.08 - - 211.27
Less: Expected credit loss allowance - - - (2.06) - - (2.06)
Total 157.76 49.94 1.49 0.02 - - 209.21
As at 1 April 2022
a. Undisputed trade receivables
- Considered good - 108.41 0.05 0.54 0.15 - 109.15
- Credit impaired - 2,06 - - # z 206
b. Disputed trade receivables
- Considered good - # = = = - -
-Credit impalred = - 2 - * .
Total (a+b) - 110.47 0.05 0.54 0.15 - 111.21
Less: Expected credit loss allowance - {2.08) - - - - {2.06)
Total £ 108.41 0.05 0.54 0.15 - 109.15
9 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulats As at As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Balance with banks
-In current accounts 22.08 70.56 0.09
- in EEFC accounts 0.03 46.29 -
Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months (Refer note ii below) 100.70 15.03 -
Cash on hand 0.51 0.71 0.80
Total 123.32 132.59 0.89

I, There are no repatriation restriction with regard to cash and cash equivalents as the end of reporting year and prior years.
ii. Bank deposits of the Group with ariginal maturity of less than three months are under lien as security against Letter of Credir, bank guarantees and borrowings (Refer note 39),
iii. For the purpose af the Consolidated Statement of Cash flows, above is considered as cash and cash equivalents,
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Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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10 Bank balances (other than cash and cash equivalents)

: As at As at As at
Particulars
! 31March 2024 31March2023 * 1 April 2022
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months (Refer note below) 50.20 - 0.70
Total 50.20 - 0.70

i. Bank deposits of the Group with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months lien as security against Letter of Credit, bank guarantees and borrawings (Refer
note 39).

11 Loans (Measured at amortised cost)

. As at As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Current
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise
Loans to related parties {Refer note 36) 18.72 15.82 11.00
Total 18.72 15.82 11.00

The Group has provided loan to the related party at rate of interest ranges from 7% to 9% p.a. for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 and the amount of loan is
repayable on the demand.

12 Other financial assets

~

As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Particulars

a. Non-current

Security deposits (measured at amortised cost) 34.16 27.39 24.47
Fixed deposits with banks 9.66 - -
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 0.27

Total (a) 44.09 27.39 24.47
b. Current

Security deposits (measured at amortised cost) 0.53 oe3 0.53
Contract assets 66.70 - -
Fixed deposits with banks 88.75 0.65 -
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits 218 0.22 0.17
Interest accrued on loans and advances (Refer note 36) 3.96 153 1.30
Others 1.07 = 3
Total (b) 163.19 3.23 2.00
Total (a+b) 207.28 30.62 26.47
Notes:

I. Fixed deposits lien as security against Letter of Credit, bank guarantees and borrowings (Refer note 39).
ii. The fair value of other financial assets are carried at amortised cost, FVTPL or FVTOC (Refer nate 40).
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13 Other assets

As at As at As at

Particulars .
: 31 March2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

a. Non-current
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Capital advances 164.45 - -
Prepaid expenses 12.26 12,54 22.99
Total 176.71 12.54 22.99
b. Current

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Other advances:

- Advance to vendors 324.73 334.73 384.89
- Advance to employees 1.37 0.17 0.25
- Advance given for purchase of mutual funds 150.00 - -

- Prepald Expenses 15.96 10.85 -
Balances with government authorities 156.23 31.90 103.48
Total 648.29 377.65 488.62

Total (a+b) 825.00 390.18 511.61
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{All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

14 Equity share capital

o

n

-

Authorised share capital

Particulars No. of Shares Amount

As at 1 April 2022 40,00,000 40.00
Increase/(Decrease) during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 40,00,000 40.00
Increase/(Decrease) during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 40,00,00C 40.00

- Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital at the beginning and at the end of the reporting

year:
As at 1 April 2022 33,80,000 33.80
Increase/(Decrease) during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 33,80,000 33.80
Increase/(Decrease) during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 33,80,000 33.80

. Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of preferential amounts.
The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy is entitled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

. The Group has neither issued nor granted any rights shares or stock options under an employment plan to existing shareholders or employees, respectively. Additionally, the

Group has not issued any shares for consideration other than cash.

- The entire shareholding of the Company is held by individual shareholders.

- Details of shareholders holding mare than 5% shares in the Company

Name of Shareholders No. of Shares % Holding

As at 31 March 2024

Sh. Parmod Kumar S/o Sh. Madan Lal 11,22,500 33.21%
Smt. Sunila Garg W/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 2,80,000 8.28%
Sh. Neelesh Garg S/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 4,50,000 13.31%
Sh. Manik Garg S/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 4,90,000 14.50%
Sh. Parmod Kumar (HUF) 10,37,500 30.70%
Total 33,80,000 100.00%

As at 31 March 2023

Sh. Parmod Kumar S/o Sh. Madan Lal 11,22,500 33.21%
Smt. Sunila Garg W/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 2,80,000 8.28%
Sh. Neelesh Garg S/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 4,50,000 13.31%
Sh. Manik Garg S/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 4,90,000 14.50%
Sh. Parmod Kumar (HUF) 10,37,500 30.70%
Total 33,80,000 100.00%

As at 1 April 2022

Sh. Parmod Kumar S/o Sh. Madan Lal 11,22,500 33.21%
Smt. Sunila Garg W/o Sh. Parmad Kumar 2,80,000 8.28%
Sh. Neelesh Garg S/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 4,50,000 13.31%
Sh. Manik Garg S/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 4,90,000 14.50%
Sh. Parmod Kumar (HUF) 10,37,500 30.70%

Total 33,80,000 100.00%
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g

15

Details of shareholding of promoters at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Nature and purpose of reserves and surplus:

a. Retained earnings

Promoter Name No. of Shares {36} i tiazel (%) Criange
No. of shares during the year
As at 31 March 2024
Sh. Parmod Kumar S/o Sh. Madan Lal 11,22,500 33.21% -
Smt. Sunila Garg W/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 2,80,000 8.28% .
Sh. Neelesh Garg S/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 4,50,000 13.31% -
Sh. Manik Garg S/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 4,90,000 14.50% -
Sh. Parmod Kumar {HUF) 10,37,500 30.70% -
Total 33,80,000 100.00% -
As at 31 March 2023
Sh. Parmod Kumar S/o0 Sh. Madan Lal 11,22,500 36.21% -
Smt. Sunila Garg W/o Sh. Parmod Kumar - 0.00% -
Sh. Neelesh Garg S/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 4,50,000 14.52% -
Sh. Manik Garg S/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 4,90,000 15.81% -
Sh. Parmod Kumar [HUF) 10,37,500 33.47% -
Total 31,00,000 100.00% -
As at 1 April 2022
Sh. Parmod Kumar S/o Sh. Madan Lal 11,22,500 33.21% -
Smt. Sunila Garg W/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 2,80,000 8.28% -
Sh. Neelesh Garg S/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 4,50,000 13.31% -
Sh. Manik Garg S/o Sh. Parmod Kumar 4,90,000 14.50% -
Sh. Parmod Kumar (HUF) 10,37,500 30.70% -
Total 33,380,000 100.00% -
Other equity
particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Retained earnings 1,173.13 168.99 122.35
Foreign currency translation reserve (0.14) - -
Capital reserve (0.06) (0.06) * -
Total 1,172.93 168.93 122.35
. Reconciliation of Retained earning as at 31 March 2024

patticula As at As at As at

S 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 168.99 122.35 122.35
Profit for the year 1,004.14 46.64 -
Balance at the end of the year 1,173.13 168.99 122.35

Retained earnings are the profits/(losses) that the Group has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to
shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

b. Foreign currency translation reserve (FCTR)

The exchange differences arising from the translation of financial statements of foreign operations with functional currency other than INR is presented within equity in the

FCTR.

c. Capital reserve

The excess of book value of net assets and reserves acquired over consideration paid in a business combination under common control transaction is recognised as capital

reserve. This reserve is not available for distribution as dividend.
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16 Borrowings

Particulars As at Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

At amortised cost
a. Non-current

Secured
. Term loans fram banks . 648,39 206.51
Unsecured
i. External commercial borrowings 168.60 164.29 =
Total 816.99 371.20 13812
Less: Current maturity of lang term borrowings (145.88) (52.75) (48.27)
Total (a) 671.11 318.45 89.85
b. Current
Secured
|. Working Capital loans repayable an demand from bank
2. Cash credit facility 1,050.76 430.80 348.55
b. Buyer credit facility 33230 37188 337.85
€. Working capital demand loan 320,00 90.00 -
Unsecured
i. Loans fram related partles [Refer note 36)
a. Directors 24.59 49,29 48.14
b. Other related parties BO.56 13175 147.10
Total 1,817.21 1,073.72 BRLEA
Add: Currevic maturivy of long term borrowings 145,88 52.75 4827
Total (b) 1,963.09 1,126.47 929.91
Total (a+b} 2,634.20 1,404,92 1,019.76

. Detalls of borrowings as at 31 March 2024

Na. of
Int
Particulars Terms of it ents Loan Coupon/ Intarest Camringamount
repayment i maturity date rate
i. Term loans from bank
- HDFC Bank Limited, Term Lean | Monthly Instaliment 2 07-May-24 7.5% t0 9.77% 332
- HOFC Bank Limited, Term Loan || Monthly Instaliment ] 07-Dec-24 7.5% 10 9.25% 15.65
- HOFC Bank Limited, Term Loan Il Manthly Installment 35 07-Feb-27 B.25% to 9.65% 2952
+ HOFC Bank Limited, Term Laan 1V Wianthly Installment B2 07-Dec-30 8.15% to 9.52% 105.90
- HOFC Bank Limited, Term Laan V Monthiy Installment 35 05-Feb-27 6.71% 1o 9.34% 229
« HOFC Bank Limited, Auto Loan VI Manthly Installment 34 05-Jan-27 6.77% 10 9.67% 169
- The Federal Bank Limited, Term Loan Vil Quarterly Instaliment 24 23-Aug-31 Repo + 2.40% 246.02
- HDFC Bank Limited, Working Capital Term Loan VIl Manthly Installment 88 22-Jul-31 LIBOR + 2.37% 244,00
il. External commercial borrowings Semi-annually 5 15-Jul-25 8.10% 168.60
ik, Tatal {i + 1i) 816.99
Iv. Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings 145.88)
v. Total (jil + iv) 671.11
vi. WorkIng Capital loans from bank
- HDFC Bank Limited, Cash Credit | On Demand NA NA 9.31%
- Federal Bank Limited, Cash Credit 1| 0On Demand NA NA 8.95%
- Axis Bank Limited, Cash Credit I1] Qn Demand NA NA 9.35%
- HDFC Bank Limited, Buyer Credit IV On Demand NA NA SOFR+1.65%
= Axis Bank Limlted, Working Capltal Demand Loan On Demand NA NA 8.75% - 8.90%
- Current maturity of long term barrowings. 2 = & -
vil. Total 1,848.94
viii. Others
- Loan from related parties On Demand NA NA 7.75% 1o 9.00% 114.15
ix. Total 114.15

Total (v + vil + Ix) 2,634.20
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b. Detalls of borrowings as at 31 March 2023

No. of
Terms of Loan Coupan/ Interd
Particulars Instaliments. pan/ est Carrying amount
repayment maturity date rate
outstanding
1. Term loans from bank ' "
- HDFC Bank Limited, Term Loan | Monthly installment 14 7-May-2024 7.5% to 8.77% 2323
- HDFC Bank Limited, Term Loan 11 Monthly Installment 21 7-Dec-2024 7.5% to 9.25% 36.28
- HDFC Bank Limited, Term Loan 11 Monthly Installment 47 7-Feb-2027 8.25% to 9.65% 30.99
- HOFC Bank Limited, Term Loan IV Menthly Installment 94 7-Dec-2030 8.15% ta 9.52% 116.41
ii. External commercial borrowings Semi-annually 5 15-Jul-25 8.10% 164.29
fil. Total (i + i) 371.20
Iv. Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (52.75)
v. Total (iii + lv) 318.45
vi. Working Capital loans from bank
+ HOFC Bank Limited, Cash Credit | On Demand NA NA 8.15% to 9.02% 29264
- Federal Bank Limited, Cash Credit |1l On Demand NA NA 0.0865 126.05
- Axis Bank Limited, Cash Credit IV On Demand NA NA 0.0825 12.10
- HDFC Bank Limited, Buyer Credit | On Demand NA NA Link with SOFR 37188
- Axis Bank Limited, Working Capital Demand Loan | On Demand NA HA 0.0875 50.00
- Current maturities of long-term borrowings - - - - 52.75
vii. Total 945.43
vill. Others
- Loan from related parties On Demand NA NA 7.75% to 9.00% 181.04
ix. Total 181.04
Total (v + vii + Ix) 1,444.92
. Details of borrowings as at 1 April 2022
No. of
il of Loa Cau st
Particulars L Installments 2 ROALINERE s ot
repayment maturity date rate
outstanding
i. Term loans from bank
- HOFC Bank Limited, Term Loan | Wonthly Installment 26 T-May-2024 7.5% to 9.77% 4177
- HOFC Bank Limited, Term Lean || Monthly Installment 1 7-Feb-2023 7.75% to 9.65% 581
- HOFC Bank Limited, Term Loan It Menthly Installment EE] 7-Dec-2024 7.5% to 9.25% 55.55
- HOFC Bank Limited, Term Loan 1V Monthly Instaliment 59 7-Feb-2027 8.25% to 9.65% 30.99
Total 138.12
Il. Less: Current maturitles of long-term borrawings 48.27)
Total {i +11) 89.85
iv. Working Capital loans from bank
- HDFC Bank Limited, Cash Credit | On Demand NA NA 0.075 40.41
- ICIC| Bank Limited, Cash Credit Il On Demand NA NA 0.075 158.78
- Federal Bank Limited, Cash Credit 11| On Demand NA NA 0.0725 98.97
- HOFC Bank Limited, Buyer Credit | On Demand NA WA Link with SOFR 337.86
- Federal Bank Limited, Warking Capital Demand Loan On Demand NA NA 0.0775 5037
- Current maturities of long-term barrowings - . NA - 48.27
v. Total {iil + v}
vi. Others
- Loan from related parties On Demand NA NA 7.75% t0 9.00% 195,24
vil. Total

Total (iii + v + vii)

d. Details of debt covenants
The Group's bank loans are subject to varlous financial covenants, Including limitations on indebtedness, debt-equity ratlo, net barrowings to EBITDA ratio, and debt service coverage ratio. Al of these covenants
nave been cansistently met, ensuring the Group's financial stabllity and compliance with its loan agreements.
e. Break-up of aggregate secured and unsecured borrowings
Particuiars As at As at Asat
31March2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Aggregate secured borrowings 2,351,45 1,099.59 82452
Aggregate unsecured borrawings 282.75 345.33 185,24
2,634.20 1,444.92 1,019.76
f. The term laans and working capital loans are secured by the Group's current, non-current assets, immovable properties and investments hield by the director, For a detalled description of the security provided Refer
note 39,
& Reconclliation of borrowings whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the Statement of Cash Flows:
Particulars Opening balance Cash flows during the year Non Cash flows _ Closing balance
Additions Deletion Others
As at 31 March 2024
Borrowings 144492 1,421.96 (1,020.33) 787.65 2,634.20
Total liabilitles fram financing activities 1,444.92 1,421.96 (1,020.33) 787.65 2,634.20
As at 31 March 2023
Borrawings 1,018.76 765.85 (340.69) 5 1,044.92
Total liabilities from financing activities 1,019.76 765.85 [340.69) - 1,444.92
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17 Trade payables

Particulars As at Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Total outstanding dues of creditors 1,843.15 673.18 ' 730.32

Total 1,843.15 673.18 73032

4

Trade payables ageing schedule:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Partleulars

Unbilled Not due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

As at 31 March 2024
a. Undisputed trade payables
Total outstanding dues of creditors 891.86 67.60 880.23 3.46 - - 1,843.15

b. Disputed trade payables
Total cutstanding dues of craditors 3 3 =

Total {a+h) B91.B6 67.60 BB0.23 3.46 - = 1,843.15

As at 31 March 2023
a. Undisputed trade payables
Total outstanding dues of creditars 508.33 37.88 124.25 272 - x 673.18

b. Disputed trade payables
Total outstanding dues of creditors - 5

Tatal ja+h) 508.33 37.88 124.25 .72 - - 673.18

As at 1 April 2022
2. Undisputed trade payables
Total cutstanding dues of creditors 574.21 4140 114.71 - - - 73032

b. Disputed trade payables
Total outstanding dues of creditors - - - . -

Total (a+h) 574.21 41.40 114.71 - - - 730.32

i. Trade payables are non-Interest hearing and are normally settled on 60 day terms.
il. The Group has provided Letters of Credit to varinis vendors [Refer note 37).

18 Other financial liabilities
As at As at As at
Particulars
31March2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Current
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings B.66 5.09 8.62
Employee payables 2315 9.51 9.66
Capital creditors 97.10 -
Derivatives liabilities {measured at FVTPL) (Refer nate 40) 1.92 - S
Others 0.47 016 -
Total 13130 18.76 18.28
I The Group entered into foreign exchange forward contracts with the intention of reducing the foreign exchange risk of ECB borrowlings, forecasted sales and purchases. These other contracts are not designated in
hedge relationships and are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
il. Reconclliation of other financial llabllities whose cash flow movements are disclosed as part of financing activities in the Statement of Cash Flows:
Barticulars Dpuning balance. Cash flows during the year Non Cash flows  Closing balance
Additions Deletion Others
As at 31 March 2024
Interest accrued but not due on horrowings 9.08 - (114.83) 114.40 8.66
Total liabilitles fram financing activities . 9.09 - (114.83) 114.40 8.66
As at 31 March 2023
Interest acerued but not due on barrowings B.62 - (71.84) 7231 9.09
Total llabilities from financing activities 8.62 - {71.84) 72.31 9.09
19 Provisions
t
Particulars As at As af As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

a. Non-current

Provision for gratulity (Refer note 35} 6.90 4.66 2m
Prowision for warranty and replacement cost |Refer helow note I} 27.34 16.44 10.36
Tatal (a) . 34.24 21.10 13.08
b. Current

Pravislon for gratuity (Refer note 35) 135 0.94 0.49
Provision for compensated absences (Refer belew note v) 4.16 132 0.56
Pravision for warranty and replacement cost (Refer below note | and ii] 54.20 - -
Pravision for litigation and other matters {Refer below note iii and v} 62.75 - -
Total (b} 122.46 2.26 1.05

Total (a+b) 156.70 23.36 14.13
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1. Movement of provision for warranty and replacement cost:

Particulars As at Asat

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance 16.44 10.36
Provision created during the year (Refer note il helow) 66.03 6.08
Provision utilised / reversed during the year . (0.93) -
Closing balance™ 81.54 16.44

* Pravision for warranties is estimated in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy and is expected to be settled as and when claims are recelved.

. The Company offers a 25-year warranty on its solar photovoltaic modules, covering both performance and defects. To proactively address potential warranty claims, the Company has established a warranty

provision of INR 55 million {approx.) for the fiscal year 2023-24. This provision reflects the Company's commitment to customer satisfaction and ensures that it has sufficient financial resources to fulfill its

warranty obligations.

iil. Movement for provision for litigation and other matters;

As at As at
Particulars

riicu 31March2024 31 March 2023
Opening balance - .
Provision created during the year (Refer below note iv.) 62.75 -
Provision utllised / reversed during the year = -
Closing balance 52,75 -

g

. The Company has filed an appeal with the Joint Commissionerate of GST and Customs 2gainst an assessment order for import of manufacturing goods for the financial Year 2018-20 and 2020-21, wherein an

additicnal tax demand was made amounting to INR 59.50 million {approx.) on account of incorrect classification of custom duty rates on imported goods at the time of payment of custom duties. The Company

has also accounted for interest on such demand amounting to INR 3,20 million as at 31 March 2024,

Further, the Company has partly paid the demand amounting to INR 16.44 Million (approx.) under protest for the purpose of filling the appeat before Commissionerate of GST and Customs (Refer note 13(i}).

=

2

o

Contract liabllities

The entire amount of the provision is presented as current, since the Graup does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for any of these obligations.

Particulars As at As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Current
- Advance from customers 235.90 47.32 170.46
Total 235.90 47.32 170.46
21 Current tax assets and liabilities (net)
particul As at As at Asat
Uil 31March2024  31March2023 1 April 2022
Current tax assets {net)
Advance income tax
(Net of provision for tax as at 31 March 2024: {NR 1.02 milfion, 31 March 2023: INR NiL and 1 April 2022 INR NIL) B.02 - -
Total 8.02 - -
Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for income tax 213.14 6.08 15.93
(Net of advance income tax and withholding taxes as at 31 March 2024: INR 148.67 million, 31 March 2023: INR 25.75 million and 1
April 2022: 11.86 million)
Total 213.14 6.08 15.93
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22 QOther liabilities

Asat Asat Asat
Particul

culen 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
a. Non-Current

Deferred government grant 239.91 9272 42.15
Total (a) 239.91 92.72 42.15
b. Current

Deferred government grant 15.80 31.36 -
Statutory liabllities

- TDS payable 16.43 3.73 6.44
- GST payable 2055 - -

- Provident and other funds payable 148 0.75 0.45
Total (b) 54.36 35,84 6.89
Total (a+b) 294.27 128.56 49.04

(24
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23 Revenue from operations

o

a

Particulars

31 March 2024

. ' Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
a. Sale of products (net)
- Manufactured goods* 7,223.58 6,007.71
- Traded goods 2,053.43 72.95
b. Sale of services
- Engineering, Procurement and Construction project 1,601.55 -
- Others - 4.93
c. Other operating revenues
- Sale of scrap 1.09 0.29
Total 10,879.65 6,085.88
* Sale of manufactured goods includes sale of solar photovoltaic modules.
. Recoriciliation of revenue recognised with the contract price is as follows:
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023

Contract price

Add/Less: Adjustment for:
- Discounts and rebates

- Refund liability

Revenue recognised

. Disaggregation of revenue information

10,879.65

6,085.88

10,879.65

6,085.88

The table below represents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers which is based on timing of recognitlon of revenue and by geographv of the
Group. As per the management, the below disaggregation best depicts the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of how revenues and cash flows are affected by

Industry, market and other economic factors.

*Represents gross trade receivables without considering expected credit loss allowance.

Barticiilars Year ended Year ended
art 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
i. Revenue by geography
- Domestic market 10,701.74 6,039.02
- Overseas market 177.91 46.86
Total 10,879.65 6,085.88
ii. Timing of recognition of revenue
- Goods transferred at a point in time 9,278.10 6,080.95
- Services transferred over time 1,601.55 4.93
Total 10,879.65 6,085.88
. Contract balances
- Receivables, which are included in 'Trade receivables'* 1,769.91 211.27
- Unearned revenue, which are included in 'Contract liabilities' (Refer note 20} 235.90 47.32
- Unbilled revenue, which are included in 'Other current financial assets’' (Refer note 12) 66.70 -
Total 2,072.51 258.59
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24 Other income

2

w

2

o

27

’ Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income from government.grant 79.53 83.77
Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost on:
- Bank deposit 3.77 0.26
- Loan to related parties (Refer note 36) 1.78 0.22
Gain on termination of lease contract 0.10 -
Gain on sale of fixed assets (net) - 0.15
Miscellaneous income 6.98 5.99
Total 92.16 90.39
Cost of materials consumed
Partictilars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Raw material at the beginning of the year 846.27 1,014.32
Add : Purchases 6,823.64 5,391.20
Less : Raw material at the end of the year (1,116.89) (846.27)
Total 6,553.02 5,559.25
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade
PaiFtllais Year ended Year ended
(|
o 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 2,309.49 64.18
Total 2,309.49 64.18
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade
Bl Year ended Year ended
arscuits 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
a. Inventories at the beginning of the year
- Finished goods 441.59 235.60
- Work-in-progress 27.46 22.23
- Stock-in-trade 2 o
469.00 257.83
b. Inventaries at the end of the year
- Finished goods 421.61 441.54
- Work-in-progress 38.81 27.46
- Stock-in-trade 616.98 -
1,077.40 469.00
Total (a-b) {608.40) (211.17)




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited
CIN : U40106HR2015PTCD75578

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

28 Employee benefits expense

B Year ended Year ended
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 149.35 85.31
Contribution to provident and other funds [Refer note 35) 6.38 3.22
Gratuity expense (Refer note 35) 3.47 2.39
Staff welfare expenses 8.30 9.47
Compensated absence expense 2.77 0.87
Total 170.27 101.26
29 Finance costs
. Year ended Year ended
Particulass
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest expense on:
- Debt and borrowings 114.40 72.31
- Letter of credit discounting 18.15 24.79
- Lease liabilities (Refer note 5) 9.73 8.49
- Others 0.04 0.28
Total 142.32 105.87
30 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Barbicuilars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 72.79 36.94
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets (Refer note 5) 34.61 29.21
Total 107.40 66.15
31 Cther expenses
Barbiatiians Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Legal and professional expenses 166.36 73.02
Business promotion 119.31 S8.75
Manpower charges 126.50 74.93
Freight and forwarding charges 95.54 77.26
Rates and taxes 77.67 3.68
Warranty and replacement expense 66,03 6.08
Power and fuel 57.07 36.74
Repairs and maintenance:
- Plant and equipment 44.89 28.23
- Computer 1.98 0.0
- Bullding 1.00 4.05
- Others 7.47 2.82
Brokerage and commission 37.77 3.73
Travelling and conveyance 25.05 12.36
Insurance 21.53 13.23
Fareign exchange loss (net) 21.28 37.54
Bank charges 13.43 19.89
Rental charges 7.48 3.05
Expenditure on corporate social responsibility 1.97 1.27
Payment to auditors 0.59 0.37
Miscellaneous expenses 83.30 15.18
Total 978.98 424.09




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

CIN : U40106HR2015PTC075578

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

32 Income tax
The major component of income tax expense are :

a) Income tax expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Paricilirs Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current income tax
Current Income tax for the year 362.85 31.73
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of earlier periods (0.29) (0.21)
Total current tax expense 362.56 31.52
Deferred tax
Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences (48.55) {12.33)
Totai deferred tax expense {48.55) {12.33})
Tax expense 314.01 19.19
b) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income (ocn)

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year

Year ended Year ended

Particul
 —— 31March2024 31 March 2023

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / asset (net) 0.00 0.27

Total 0.00 0.27

) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic income tax rate for 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Profit before tax 1,318.73 66.64

Tax using the company’s domestic tax rate (31 March 2024: 25.168%, 31 March 2023: 25.168%) 331.90 16.77

Tax effect of :

Non-deductible expenses 4.83 2.36
Difference in tax rate applicable to group companies 0.52 .
Adjustments recognised in the period for current tax of prior periods (23.24) {0.21)

Tax expense at the effective income tax rate 23.81% (31 March 2023: 28.39%) 314.01 18.92
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(d) Breakup of deferred tax assets recognised in the Balance sheet

. As at As at As at

Particulars ;

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Deferred tax assets
Lease liabilities 37.71 21.41 25.13 °
Trade receivables - 89.10 59.41
Provision for warranty and replacement cost 20.52 4.14 2.61
Provision for litigation and other matters 15.79 g =
Deferred government grant 5149 31.23 10.61
Others 12.61 4.44 3.68
Total deferred tax assets (A) 137.82 150.32 101.44
Deferred tax liabilities
Right-of-use assets 36.90 22.20 27.04
Inventuories - 78.52 53.30
Property, plant and equipment 22.85 20.31 443
Others 0.13 0.11 0.10
Total deferred tax liabilities (B) 59,88 121.14 84.87
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (A-B) 77.94 29.18 16.57

The Group offsets tax assets and liabllities only if it has a legally enforceable right to set-off current tax assets and

assets and deferred tax liabilities related to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Breakup of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the Balance sheet

current tax liabilities and the deferred tax

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

As at
1 April 2022

Deferred tax assets

Security deposit 0.13 - -
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 0.02 = -
Total deferred tax assets (A) 0.15 - -
Deferred tax liabilities

Right-of-use assets 0.38 - -
Total deferred tax liabilities (B} 0.38 - -
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (A-B) (0.23) - -

The Group offsets tax assets and liabilities only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax

assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

v
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33

34

Other Comprehensive Income {OCl)
The disaggregation of changes to OCI by each type of reserve in equity is shown below:

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans (0.01) (1.08)
Foreign currency translation reserve (FCTR) (0.14) -
Income tax expense relating to the above 0.00 0.27
Total {0.15) (0.81)
Earnings per shares (EPS)

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Basic
Profit for basic EPS being net profit attributable to equity shareholders (A) 1,004.15 47.45
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic EPS (B) 33,80,000 33,80,000
Basic earnings per equity share (A / B) (INR) 297.08 14.04
Diluted
Profit for diluted EPS being net profit attributable to equity shareholders (C) 1,004.15 47.45
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating diluted EPS (D) 33,80,000 33,80,000
Diluted earnings per equity share (C /(D) (INR) 297.08 14.04
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35 Employee benefits

A. Defined contribution plans
The Group makes contribution to Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Fund and Labour Welfare Fund which are defined contribution plan, for
qualifying employees. Under these schemes, the Group is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Group's
contribution to the Employee Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Fund is deposited with the Provident Fund Commissioner. The amount of
contribution was recognised as expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss are:

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, for the year is as under:

Year ended Year ended

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Employer's contribution to Provident Fund 6.08 2.75
Employer's contribution to Employees State Insurance Fund 0.29 0.47
Employer's contribution to Labour Welfare Fund 0.01 -
Total contribution to defined contribution plans 6.38 3.22

B. Compensated absences - other long term employee benefit plan

The employees of the Group are entitled to compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The employees can carry
forward up to the specified portion of the unutilised accumulated compensated absences and utilise it in future periods or receive cash at retirement or
termination of employment. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation (using the projected unit credit
method) based on the additional amount expected to be paid as a result of the unutilised entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

C. Defined benefit plans
Gratuity
The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The plan provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while
in employment or on termination of employment, of an amount equivalent to 15 days basic salary payable for each completed year of service or part thereof

in excess of & months with no ceiling limit on the amount. Vesting occurs upon completion of 5 years of service.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current service cost is measured using the projected unit credit method with actuarial
valuations being carried out at each reporting date.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

Gratuity - defined benefit plan

particular Year ended Year ended
AR 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Present value of un-funded defined benefit obligation 8.24 5.60
Total 8.24 5.60
Break-up of present value of un-funded defined benefit obligation
Particulars As at As at As at

© 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Non-current portion 6.90 4.66 2.72
Current portion 1.35 0.94 0.49

Total

5.60

3.21
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i. The movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation for Gratuity

s As at As at As at
Particulars -
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
Liability at the beginning of the year 5.60 3.21 1.63
Acquisition adjustment 0.30 - -
Current service cost 3.08 2.19 1.42
Past service cost - - -
Interest cost 0.40 0.20 0.09
Benefits paid (1.05) (0.81) -
Actuarial gain arising from:
- changes in demographic assumption - - -
- changes in financial assumption {0.01) (0.31) (0.06)
- changes in experience adjustment (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) (0.07) 1.12 0.13
Liability at the end of the year 8.25 5.60 3.21
ii. The amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income:
partlcul Year ended Year ended
s 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

a. Statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 3.08 2,19
Past service cost # B
Interest cost/ (Income) 0.40 0.20
Total (a) 3.48 2.39
b. Other comprehensive income
Actuarial (loss)/ gain on defined benefit obligation:

changes in demographic assumption 4 N

changes in financial assumption (0.01) {0.31)

changes in experience adjustment (i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions) (0.07) 1.12
Total {b) (0.08) 0.81
Total (a+b) 3.40 3.20

The latest actuarial valuations for the present value of the defined benefit liability was carried out at 31 March 2024. The present value of the defined benefit
liability, and the related current service cost and past service cost, was measured using the projected unit credit method.

iii. The principal assumption used for the purpose of actuarial valuation is as follows:

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Discount rate 7.18% 7.16% 6.10%
Expected rate of salary increase 10.00% 10.00% 10.00%
Retirement age 58.00 58.00 58.00
Attrition / Withdrawal rate 17.00 17.00 17.00
Mortality table 100% of IALM (2012 - 100% of IALM (2012 -  100% of IALM (2012 -

14) 14) 14)

The Group regularly assesses these assumptions with the projected long-term plans and prevalent industry standards.
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iv. Sensitivity analysis

vi.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while
holding all other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:

Particulars Increase Decrease

As at 31 March 2024

Impact of change in discount rate by 0.50% (0.21) 0.23
Impact of change in salary by 0.50% 0.22 (0.21)
As at 31 March 2023

Impact of change in discount rate by 0.50% (0.14) 0.15
Impact of change in salary by 0.50% 0.15 (0.14)

As at 1 April 2022
Impact of change in discount rate by 0.50% (0.09) 0.10
Impact of change in salary by 0.50% 0.09 (0.09)

. The plan typically exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as: interest rate, longetivity risk and salary risk.

Interest rate risk
A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability.

Longetivity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after
their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability,

Salary risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. An increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

The table below summarises the maturity profile and duration of the defined benefit obligation:

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

0to1years 0.34 0.94 0.49
1to 2 years 0.61 0.80 0.26
2 to 3 years 0.77 0.66 0.28
3 to 4 years 0.73 0.55 0.26
4to 5 years 0.67 0.46 0.26
5to 6 years 0.58 0.38 0.22
6 years onwards 4,54 1.82 1.44

Total expected payments 8.24 5.61 3.21
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36 Related party disclosures
The Group's related parties primarily consists of its subsidiarles, associates, joint ventures and other entities which includes the enterprises owned or significantly Influenced
by Key Management Personnel and / or their Relatives. The Group rautinely enters into transactions with these related parties in the ordinary course of business at market
rates and terms. Transactions and balances between the Company, its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.

Disclosure as required by Ind AS 24 - “Related party disclosures” are as follows:

{a

Names of the related parties and description of relationship

Names Designation

i.  Key managerial personnel (KMP)

Mr. ManTk Garg Director (W.e.f 15 January 2022)
Mr. Neelesh Garg Director
Mr. Parmod Kumar Director

il.  Relatives of key managerial personnel (KMP) and directors
Mrs. Kamla Rani
Mr. Dinesh Jindal Upto 15 January 2022
Mr. Manik Garg
Mrs. Manavika Garg
Mrs. Sunila Garg W.e.f 15 January 2022

iii. Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management personnel and / or their relatives
Shiv Charan Dass Industries (P) Limited
Shree Ganesh Fats Private Limited
Kamla Olea Private Limited
Kamla Finvest Private Limited
Saatvik PV Private Limited
Shree Tirupati Sales
Kamla Hi-Tech LLP
Parmod Kumar {HUF)

Manik Garg (HUF)
Neelesh Garg (HUF)
Saatvik Social Foundation
Saatvik Agro Processors

Other Related Parties

Stockwell Solar Services Private Limited
Ultravibrant Solar Energy Private Limited
SP Holdings

g




(b) Transactions with related parties

: R gl

B - Year ended Year ended

Name and Relationshij Nat f transaction

. wrea 31March2024 31 March 2023
Key managerial personnel (KMP)
Mr. Manik Garg Interest paid on loan 0.27 -
Mr. Neelesh Garg Interest paid on loan 0.23 -
Mr. Parmed Kumar Interest paid on loan 0.32 -
Mr. Manik Garg Loan and advances taken 7.15 0.05
Mr, Neelesh Garg Loan and advances taken 3.00 11.05
Mr. Parmod Kumar Loan and advances taken 4.10 48.70
Mr. Manik Garg Loan repaid 12.25 8.10
Mr. Neelesh Garg Loan repaid 20.30 6.95
Mr. Parmad Kumar Loan repaid 6.42 43.65
Mr. Manik Garg Reimbursements 0.26 -
Mr. Manik Garg Remuneration to directors and KMP 4.80 4.80
Mr. Neelesh Garg Remuneration to directors and KMP 4.80 4.80
Above remuneration includes:
Short-term employee benefits 9.60 9.60
Relatives of key managerial personnel (KMP) and directors
Mrs. Sunila Garg Interest paid on loan 0.68 -
Mrs, Manavika Garg Interest paid on loan 0.20 -
Mrs. Sunila Garg Loan and advances taken 17.50 -
Mrs. Manavika Garg Loan and advances taken 273 -
Mrs. Sunila Garg Loan repaid 29,55 -

. Entities on which centrolling entity or one or more KMP have a significant

influence / control
Parmod Kumar (HUF) Interest paid on loan 0.11 -
Manik Garg {HUF) Interest paid on loan 0.09
Neelesh Garg (HUF) Interest paid on loan 0.07 -
Shiv Charan Dass Industries (P) Limited |nterest paid on loan 0.86 1.24
Shree Ganesh Fats Private Limited Interest paid on loan 122 122
Kamla Oleo Private Limited Interest paid on loan 0.39 0.13
Kamla Finvest Private Limited Interest paid on loan 0.13 227
Saatvik PV Private Limited Interest Income on loan given 1.46 0.22
Saatvik Socfal Foundation Payment of CSR Expenditure 2.01 1.27
Kamla Hi-Tech LLP Purchase of goods and services* 73.36 41.60
Shree Tirupati Sales LLP Purchase of goods and services® - 328.72
Saatvik PV Private Limited Loan Given 0.92
Saatvik PV Private Limited Loan Repayment - 0.68
Mr. Parmod Kumar (HUF) Loan and advances taken 1.50 -
Mr. Manik Garg (HUF) Loan and advances taken 1.08 -
Mr. Neelesh Garg (HUF) Loan and advances taken 1.00 -
Stockwell Solar Services Private Limited Interest Income on |oan given 0.08 -



iv.

(

o

Other Related Parties

Stockwell Solar Services Private Limited Interest Income on loan given 0.08 -
Ultravibrant Solar Energy Private Limited Interest Income on loan given 0.07 -
Ultravibrant Solar Energy Private Limited Purchase of goods and services* 0.04 -
Ultravibrant Solar Energy Private Limited Reimbursements 0.07 -
Stockwell Solar Services Private Limited Advances given 1.40 -
Ultravibrant Solar Energy Private Limited Advances given 1.56
SP Holdings Purchase of Asset 20.84
*Purchase amount s after excluding GST.
Outstanding balances with related parties
" i Year ended Year ended Year ended
Name and Relationshi| Nature of i
P LI LR 31March2024  31March2023 1 April 2022
Key managerial personnel (KMP})
Mr. Neelesh Garg Loan and advances taken 14.73 3200 27.85
Mr. Manik Garg Loan and advances taken 3.72 8.83 16.88
Mr. Parmod Kumar Loan and advances taken 6.14 8.46 3.41
Mr. Neelesh Garg Other Payables 0.30 0.29 0.09
Mr. Manik Garg Other Payables 0.30 0.29 0.09
Mr. Manik Garg Interest payable on loan 0.16 - -
Mr. Neelesh Garg Interest payable on loan 0.14 - -
Mr. Parmod Kumar Interest payable on loan 0.19 - -
Mr. Manik Garg Other creditors 0.26 - -
ii. Relatives of key managerial personnel (KMP) and directors
Mrs. Manavika Garg Lean and advances taken 273 - .
Mrs. Sunila Garg Loan and advances taken 27.48 39.51 41.46
Mr. Dinesh Jindal Loan and advances taken 4.70 4.70 4.70
Mrs. Sunila Garg Other Payables - - 0.09
Mrs. Sunila Garg Interest payable on loan 0.41 - -
Mr. Parmod Kumar (HUF) Interest payable on loan 0.07 - -
Mrs. Manavika Garg Interest payable on loan 0.12 -
Mr. Manik Garg (HUF) Interest payable on loan 0.07 ) -
Mr. Neelesh Garg (HUF) Interest payable on loan 0.04 - -
Entities on which controlling entity or one or more KMP have a significant
influence / control
Mr. Parmod Kumar {(HUF) Loan and advances taken 34.05 32.53 32.53
Shiv Charan Dass Industries (P) Limited Loan and advances taken 3.32 15.82 19.62
Shree Ganesh Fats Private Limited Loan and advances taken 13.50 13.50 13.50
Kamla Oleo Private Limited Loan and advances taken 0.27 24.27 33.87
Kamla Finvest Private Limited Loan and advances taken 1.44 1.44 1.44
Mr. Manik Garg {(HUF) Loan and advances taken 1.08 - -
Mr. Neelesh Garg (HUF) Loan and advances taken 1.00 -
Saatvik PV Private Limited Loan given 16.73 15.82 11.00
Shiv Charan Dass Industries (P) Limited Interest payable on loan 0.77 112 276
Shree Ganesh Fats Private Limited Interest payable an loan 1.09 1.09 0.7
Kamla Oleo Private Limited Interest payable on loan 0.35 2.04 2.55
Kamla Finvest Private Limited Interest payable an loan 0.12 012 0.10
Shree Tirupati Sales LLP Advance to Supplier - 68.82 -
Kamla Hi-Tech LLP Advance to Supplier 0.23 - -
Saatvik PV Private Limited Advance to Supplier - 0.18 -
Saatvik PV Private Limited Interest accrued on loan given 3.01 153 1.30
Other Related Parties
Ultravibrant Solar Energy Private Limited Advances given 1.56 - -
Stockwell Solar Services Private Limited Advances given 1.40 - -
Ultravibrant Solar Energy Private Limited Other Payable 0.04 ] -
Ultravibrant Solar Energy Private Limited Interest accrued on loan given 0.07 - -
Stockwell Solar Services Private Limited Interest accrued on loan given 0.05 - -
Ultravibrant Solar Energy Private Limited Capital creditors 0.07 - -

(d) The fallowing guarantees or securities have been provided to banks and other financial institutions in relation to borrowings made by the companies listed below:

%o q\w



(e]

. . Year ended Year ended

Name and relationshi Nature of transacti
& transaction 31March2024 31 March 2023

Saatvik Agro Processors Guarantee Given 980.00 -
Saatvik Agro Processors Guarantee Given 950.00 -
Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited Guarantee Given 465.00 -
Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited Guarantee Given 465.00 -
Saatvik Cleantech EPC Private Limited Guarantee Given 50.00 50.00

) Terms and Conditions

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevall in arm’s length transactions.

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party
receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Group has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (31 March
2023: INR Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial pesition of the related party and the market in which the related party
operates.

. The amounts disclosed in the table remuneration to KMP are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management personnel.

Directors do not receive eratuitv entitlements from the Group.
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37 Contingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for):

s Year ended Year ended Asat
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
(a) Contingent Liabilities
I. Guarantees excluding financial guarantees 438.71 - -
il. Guarantees issued on behalf of group companies and other entities on which the one or more KMPs have 1,238.31 - -
contrel [Refer below note (f)]
iii. Other amounts for which the Group is contingently liable
- Execution of bond for availing concessional duty benefit in event of default in use for manufacturing main - - -
product
. Other money for which the Group is contingently liable
- Outstanding foreign Letter of Credit agalnst which materials not dispatched 139.23 8.77 62.31
Total (a) 1,816.25 8.77 62.31
(b) Commitments
i. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (net of 58.38 - -
advances)
il. Other commitments - .
- Export obligation under EPCG Scheme 1,403.23 523.55 224.45
- Export obligation under Advance License Scheme 61.00 172.51 -
Total (b) 1,522.61 696.06 224.45
Total (a+h) 3,338.86 704.83 286.76

As of March 31, 2024, the Group had outstanding capital commitments totaling INR 59.01 million. This amount represents investments in future growth initiatives, including the
completion of a 60-megawatt solar photovoltaic manufacturing line. The Group has already allocated INR 51 million towards the manufacturing line and has made an advance

payment of INR 162.82 milllon for the purchase of foreign machinery at the year end.

The Company has outstanding tax demands of INR 0.06 million on the TRACE portal related to the fiscal years 2021-2024. The management believes that these issues can be
resolved by filing revised TDS returns and is taking the necessary steps to address them. The Company does not anticipate any material financial impact from these demands.

or more KMP have control. The Company has designated such guarantees as “insurance contracts” and classified such guarantees as contingent liabilities.

Accordinglv, there are no assets and liabilities recognized within the financial statement under these contracts.

. The Company has issued financials guarantees to banks on behalf of and in respect of loans and facilities availed by the subsidiaries and entities on which controlling entity or one

2 Name of Sanctioned Guarantee Loan

Particulars

Banks Date Sanctioned Drawn Amount
As at 31 March 2024
Saatvik Agro Processors HOFC Bank Limited 08-Apr-23 980.00 568.73
Saatvik Agro Processors AXIS Bank Limited 08-May-23 950.00 179.55
Saatvik Solar industries Private Limited HDFC Bank Limited 18-Oct-23 465.00 243.99
Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited Federal Bank Limited 18-Oct-23 465.00 246.04
(Formerly known as S Cleantech Renewables Private Limited)
Saatvik Cleantech EPC Private Limited HDFC Bank Limited 20-Jan-23 50.00 -
(Formerly known as S Cleantech Power Private Limited)
Total 2,910.00 1,238.31
As at 31 March 2023
Saatvik Cleantech EPC Private Limited HDFC Bank Limited 20-Jan-23 50.00 -
(Formerly known as S Cleantech Power Private Limited)
Total 50.00 =
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39 Assets pledged as security
The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are as follows:

Particulars Note No. As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022
(1) Current .
{a) Inventories 6 2,194.50 1,322.02 1,275.53
(b) Trade receivables 8 1,872.41 209.21 109.15
{c} Cash and cash equivalents* 9 9.69 96.97 0.89
(d) Bank balances other than (iii) above 10 6.10 - -
(e) Loans 11 465.24 15.82 11.00
Total current assets pledged as security 4,547.,94 1,644.02 1,396.57
{2} Non Current
{a) Property, plant and equipment 3
i. Freehold Land 32.32 5.95 5.95
ii. Factory Building 105.71 28.53 29.59
fii. Plantand Machinery 775.33 350.82 162.35
iv. Others 58.96 - -
(b) CWIP 4 316.31 - -
Total non-current assets pledged as security 1,288.63 385.30 197.89
Total assets pledged as security 5,836.57 2,029.32 1,594.46

i.  Immovable properties and investment of the directors are also pledged with the banks.

*Deposits with an original maturity of less than 3 months, as well as those with maturities between 3 and 12 months that are lien with banks, hence are not
considered as a part of cash and cash equivalents.
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40 Fair value measurement

A. Category wise details as to carrying value, fair value and the level of fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments are as follows:

Carrying amount Fair value
Year ended31 March 2024 Amortised
FVTPL FVTOCI Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments in mutual funds (Refer note 7) 100.00 , - - 100.00 100.00 - - ,100.00
Trade receivables (Refer note 8) - - 1,767.45 1,767.45 - - 1,767.45 1,767.45
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 8) - - 123.32 123.32 - - 123.32 123.32
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 10) - - 50.20 50.20 - - 50.20 50.20
Loans (Refer note 11) - - 18.72 18.72 - - 18.72 18.72
Other financial assets (Refer. note 12) - - 207.28 207.28 - - 207.28 207.28
Total 100.00 - 2,166.97 2,266.97 100.00 - 2,166.97 2,266.97
Financial liabilities
Borrowings (Refer note 16) - - 2,634.20 2,634.20 - - 2,634.20 2,634.20
Lease liabilities (Refer note 5) - - 164.08 164.08 - - 164.08 164.08
Trade payables {Refer note 17) - - 1,843.15 1,843.15 - - 1,843.15 1,843.1%
Derivative liability (Refer note 18) 1.92 - - 1.92 1.92 - - 1.92
Other financial liabilities (Refer note 18) - - 129.38 129.38 - - 129.38 129.38
Total 1.92 - 4,770.81 4,772.73 1.92 = 4,770.81 4,772.73
Carrying amount Fair value
Year ended31 March 2023 Amortised
FVTPL FVTOCI o Total Level 1 Level 2 level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investments in mutual funds {(Refer note 7) - - - - - - - -
Trade receivables (Refer note 8) - - 209.21 209.21 - - 209.21 209.21
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 9) - - 132,59 132.59 - - 132.59 132.59
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 10) - - - - - = - -
Loans (Refer note 11) - - 15.82 15.82 - - 15.82 15.82
Derivative liability (Refer note 18) - - - - - - -
Other financial assets {Refer note 12) - - 30.62 30.62 - - 30.62 30.62
Total - - 388.24 388.24 - - 388.24 388.24
Financial liabilities i
Borrowings (Refer note 16) - - 1,444.92 1,444.92 - - 1,444.92 1,444.92
Lease liabilities (Refer note 5) - - 85.08 85.08 - - 85.08 85.08
Trade payables (Refer note 17) - - 67318 673.18 - - 673.18 673.18
Other financial liabilities (Refer note 18} - . 18.76 18.76 - - 18.76 18.76
Total : - - 2,221.94 2,221.94 & = 2,221.94 2,221.94
Carrying amount Fair value
As at 1 April 2022
? FVTPL FVTOCI Am;r::sed Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Investrnents in mutual funds (Refer note 7) - - - - - - - =
Trade receivables (Refer note 8) - - 109.15 109.15 - - 109.15 109.15
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 9) - - 0.89 0.89 - - 0.89 0.89
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 10) - - 0.70 0.70 - - 0.70 0.70
Loans (Refer note 11) - - 11.00 11.00 - - 11.00 11.00
Other financial assets (Refer note 12) - - 26.47 26.47 - - 26.47 26.47
Total - - 148.21 148.21 - = 148.21 148.21
Financial liabilities :
Borrowings (Refer note 16) - - 1,019.76 1,019.76 - - 1,019.76 1,019.76
Lease liabilities (Refer note 5) - . 99.83 99.83 - - 99.83 99.83
Trade payables (Refer note 17) - - 73032 730.32 - - 730.32 730.32
Derivative liability (Refer note 18) - - - = - % ~ =
Other financial liabilities (Refer note 18) - - ) 18.28 18.28 - - 18.28 18.28
Total = = 1,868.19 1,868.19 - - 1,868.19 1,868.19
B. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values
1) The carrying value of trade recelvables, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, borrowings, lease liabilities, ather current financial assets and other current financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
approximates to their fair value due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.
2) The fair value of non-current financial assets and financial liabilities measured are determined by discounting future cash flows using current rates of instruments with similar terms and credit risk. The current
rates used does not reflect significant changes from the discount rates used initially. Therefore, the carrying value of these instruments measured at amartised cost approximates to their fair value.
C. The following is the basis of categorising the financial instruments measured at fair value into Level 1 to Level 3;

Level 1: This level Includes financial assets and liabilities that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: This level includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset ar liability, either directly {i.e., as prices) ar
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Level 3: This level includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data {unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a
valuatien medel based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactians in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

D. There were no transfers between any levels for fair value measurements.
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(2}

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
its operating activities {primarily trade receivables), including deposits (if any) with banks and other financial assets. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis. .

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit risk exposure. There is no significant concentration of credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-payment by trade partners. Receivable credit risk is managed subject to the Group's established palicy, procedures and control
relating to trade partner's risk management. The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables through a lifetime expected
credit loss. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

The Group always measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit |oss [ECL). The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the
expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix under simplified approach. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and
adjusted for forward-looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due. Based on internal assessment which is driven by
the historical experience and current facts available in relation to default and delays in collection thereof, the credit risk for these trade receivables is considered low.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Group does not hold collateral as security.

. Cash and cash equivalents and term deposit:

The Group maintains its cash and cash equivalents and term deposits {if any) with reputed bariks. The credit risk on these instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

Security deposits
The Group monitors the credit rating of the counterparties on regular basis. These instruments carry very minimal credit risk based on the financial position of parties and Group 's historical

experience of dealing with the parties. The Group determines the loss allowance on security deposits using estimates based on histarical credit loss experience as per the past due status of
the counter parties, adjusted as appropriate to reflect current conditions and estimates of future economic conditians.

. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations assaciated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
The Group's appreach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the beard of directors, who has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the
Group's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funds through equity infusion
and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities:
The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group may be required to pay.

Particulars Carrying Value  Less than 1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years Total
Year ended 31 March 2024
Borrowings 2,634.20 2,432.11 507.49 191.22 3,130.82
Lease liabilities 164.08 48.33 99.11 65.82 213.26
Trade payables 1,843.15 1,839.69 3.46 - 1,843.15
Other financial liabilities 131.30 131.30 = - 131.30
4,772.73 4,451.43 610.06 257.04 5,318.53

Year ended 31 March 2023

Barrowings 1,444.92 1,151.76 331.57 37.10 1,520.43
Lease liabilities 85.08 30.95 66.98 - 97.93
Trade payables 673.18 673.18 - = 673.18
Other financial liabilities 18.76 18.76 - - 18.76
2,221.94 1,874.65 398.55 37.10 2,310.30
#REF!
Borrowings 1,019.76 939.03 102.50 . 1,041.53
Lease liabilities 99.83 32.07 90,85 - 123.02
Trade payables 730.32 730.32 - - 730.32
Other financial liabilities 18.28 18.28 - - 18.28

1,868.19 1,719.70 193.45 - 1,913.15
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41 Capital Management

The Group aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to
its shareholders Management monitors the return on capital as well as the debt equity ratio and make necessary adjustments in the
capital structure for the development of the business. The capital structure of the Group is based on management’s judgement of the
appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day - to - day needs.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares.

B Year ended Year ended As at
Particulars p
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 1 April 2022

Borrowings (Refer note 16)* 2,634.20 1,444.92 1,019.76
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 9)** . (173.52) (132.59) (1.59)
Net Debt 2,460.68 1,312.33 1,018.17
Equity share capital 33.80 33.80 33.80
Other equity 1,172.93 168.93 122.35
Total Capital 1,206.73 202.73 156.15
Capital and net debt ) 3,667.41 1,515.06 1,174.32
Capital gearing ratio 67.10% 86.62% 86.70%

*Debt is defined as long-term borrowings including current maturities of long term borrowings and short-term borrowings.
**Cash and cash equivalents includes other bank balances.
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42 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the Group's operations and to provide guarantees to suppart its operations. The Group’s principal financial assets include loans, trade receivables, and cash and cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The Group also halds investments in debt and equity instruments and enters into derivative transactions.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's board of directors have the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework. The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk mitigation measures to
monitor risks and adherence to those measures. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities.

A. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, equity
investments and derivative financial instruments.

. Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to interest rate
risk through the impact of rate changes on interest-bearing liabilities and assets. The Group manages its interest rate risk by monitoring the movements in the market interest rates closely.

The sensitivity analysis have been carried out based on the exposure to interest rates for instruments not hedged against interest rate fluctuations at the end of the reporting periods. The
said analysis has been carried on the amount of floating rate non-current borrowings outstanding at the end of the reparting period.

Currently, the Group's borrowings are all at fixed interest rates as well as at floating interest rates. There are no floating interest-bearing assets.

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Amount (INR}) % of total loans Amount (INR) % of total loans

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 822.32 31.22% 371.88 25.74%

Sensitivity Analysis
A 100 basis point increase or decrease represents the management's assessment of the seasonably passible change in interest rates.

Total Exposure to the Group Impact on profit after tax (INR)
Particulars As at31March  Asat31March Asat31March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
2024 2023
Financial liabilities
Barrowings 822.32 371.88 8.22 3.72

. Foreign Currency Risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of
changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency). The Group also has foreign currency
borrowings in the form of external commercial borrowings. %

(a) The Group's foreign currency expasure on account of fareign currency denominated payables & receivables not hedged is as follows:

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Particulars

2 Amount (INR)  Amount (USD) Amount {INR) Amount (USD)
Assets
Trade receivables 44.25 0.54 6.15 0.07
Other current assets 70.49 0.85 - -
Cash and cash equivalents - EEFC 0.03 0.00 46.26 0.56
Liabilities
Trade payables e (35 251.20 2 3.05 25.21 0.34
Other current financial labilties = % 4 0 @ e 50.05 L. 072 - -

Sensitivity Analysis
A 100 basis point increase or decrease represents the management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in rates.

Total Exposure to the Group Impact on profit after tax (INR}

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets k
Trade receivables 0.54 0.07 0.44 0.06
Other current assets 0.85 - 0.70 -
Cash and cash equivalents - EEFC 0.00 0.56 0.00 0.46
Liabilities
Trade payables 3.05 0.34 2.51 0.25

Other current financial liabilities 0.72
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44 First- time adoption of Ind AS (Explanation of transition to Ind AS)

As stated in note 2 of these financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2024, are the first that Group has prepared in accardance with Ind
AS. For periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group has prepared its financial statements in accordance with
accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, the Group has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for year ended on 31 March 2024, together with
the comparative year data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023, as described in the summary of significant accounting policies. In
preparing these financial statements, the Group’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2022, the Group’s date of transition to ind
AS. This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Group in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet
as at 1 April 2022 and the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2023 and how the transition from IGAAP to Ind AS has
affected the Group's financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to comply with each Ind AS effective at the reporting date for its full set of Ind AS financial statements. As a general
principle, Ind AS 101 requires the standards effective at the reporting date to be applied retrospectively. However, retrospective application is
prohibited in some areas, particularly where retrospective application would require judgements by the management after the outcome of the
particular transaction is already known and where mandatory exceptions are available to retrospective application of certain Ind ASs (Appendix B
of Ind AS 101). In addition, a number of limited optional exemptions from full retrospective application of Ind ASs are granted where the cost of
compliance is deemed to exceed the benefits to the users of the financial statements.

A. The following are the Ind AS mandatory exceptions:
i) Estimates
An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS as at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those
estimates were in error.

In accordance with Ind AS 101, where application of Ind AS requires an entity to make certain estimates that were not required under Previous
GAAP, those estimates have been made to reflect conditions that existed at the date of transition (for preparing apening Ind AS balance sheet) or
at the end of the comparative period (for presenting comparative information as per Ind AS).

The Group's estimates under Ind AS are consistent with the abave requirement. Key estimates considered in preparation of these financial
statements that were not required under the Previous GAAP are as follows:

- Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credit loss madel;
- Incremental borrowing rate for measurement of lease liabilities and corresponding right of use assets and
- Determination of the discounted value for financial instruments carried at amortised cost.

ii) Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets into amortised cost or FVTOCI on the basis of the facts
and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at
amortised cost based on the facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application is impracticable.

Accardingly, the Group has determined the classification and measurement of financial assets into amortised cost or FVTOC! based on the facts
and circumstances that exist on the date of transition.

iii) De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after
the date of transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirement provided that the
information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past transactions was obtained at
the time of initially accounting for those transactions.

The Group has elected to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively from the date of transition to Ind AS.




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

CIN : U40106HR2015PTC075578

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

iv) Impairment of financial assets

Thz Group has applied the impairment requiréments of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it Kas used reasonable
and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial instruments were
initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the Group has not undertaken an exhaustive search
for information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind AS, whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.

B. The Group has applied the following transition exemptions apart from mandatory exceptions in Ind-AS 101:
Ind AS 101 allows first- time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Group has
applied the following exemptions:

i) Deemed cost

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment including capital
work-in-progress as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments.

This exemption can also be used for intangible assets including intangible assets under development covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible assets.

Accordingly, the Group has elected to measure items of property, plant and equipment including capital work-in-progress and intangible assets
including intangible assets under development at its carrying value at the transition date.

ii) Leases
Ind AS 101 allows an entity to determine whether an arrangement existing at the date of transition to Ind AS contains a lease in accordance with
Ind AS 116, on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at that date.

The standard provides an option to apply Ind AS 116 on transition date either using full retrospective method or modified retrospective method
along with some available practical expedients.

Accordingly, the Group has elected to follow modified retrospective {approach I1) method for transition to Ind AS 116, where the present value of
lease liabilities is equal to right of use assets.

iii) Revenue
Ind AS 101 permits an entity not to restate contracts that were completed before the earliest period presented. A completed contract is a
contract for which the entity has transferred all of the goods or services identified in accordance with previous GAAP.

Accordingly, the Group has applied Ind AS 115 ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ to contracts that are not completed on transition date.
Further, the Group has applied full retrospective approach on transition date subject to some practical expedients as prescribed by the standard.

iv) Fair value measurement of financial assets or financial liabilities at initial recognition

Fair value measurement of financial assets or liabilities at initial recognition: Ind AS 109 requires that all financial liabilities and assets must be
recognised at fair value (adjustment of transaction costs for financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value through Profit and Loss)
with the exception of trade receivables that do not have a significant financing component as per 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
However, there are no items which have been identified to be measured at fair value as they are not held for trading.
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Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

CIN : U40106HR2015PTC075578

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

G. Notes to First time adoption:-

1 Leases
Under Ind AS, all lease contracts, with limited exceptions for short term and low value leases, are recognised in the financial statements by way of
right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities. This resulted in recognition of “Right-of-Use asset” (ROU) and a corresponding “lease liability”.
On transition to Ind AS, the Group has adopted modified retrospective (approach I1) method and recognise lease liabilities at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of transition, and measure and recognise Right-of-use
asset equal to lease liabilities and after adjusting lease equalisation liability standing as on transition date, after adjustment of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that lease recognised.

This has resulted in recognition of Right-of-use assets and Lease liabilities as on 31 March, 2023 and 01 April 2022. The rental expenses recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March, 2023 and 31 March, 2022 under previous GAAP has been replaced by the recognition of
depreciation expense on ROU asset and interest expense on lease liability.

2 Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
Under Ind AS 109, the Group is required to apply expected credit loss model for recognising the allowance for doubtful debts on trade receivables
measured at amortised cost. This results in reduction in the retained earnings on the Ind AS transition date and during the year ended March 31, 2023.

3 Remeasurement differences
Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on
the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these
remeasurements were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. As a result of this change, the profit for the year ended March 31, 2023
decreased. There is no impact on the total equity as at 31 March 2023,

4 Security deposits
Under the previous GAAP, interest free lease security deposits (that are refundable in cash on completion of the lease term) are recorded at their
transaction value. Under Ind AS, all financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly, the Group has fair valued these security
deposits under Ind AS. Difference between the fair value and transaction value of the security deposit has been recognised as prepaid rent and right
of use assets for which leases has recognised.

Subsequently interest income has been accreted, prepaid expenses has been amortised and right of use assets has been depreciated over the period
of contract or lease tenure.

5 Borrowings
Under the previous GAAP, borrowing are recognised at transaction price and processing cost such on borrowing were charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which it is incurred.

Under Ind AS 109, borrowings are accounted at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, appropriate adjustments have been made as
atind AS transition date and during the year ended March 31, 2023. This resulted into decrease in the Other Equity and Statement of Profit and Loss.

6 Other adjustments
(a) Property, plant and equipment
(i) Under previous GAAP, double shift depreciation on the "Plant and Machinery" has not been charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss and hence,
appropriate adjustments have been made as at Ind AS transition date and during the year ended March 31, 2023. This resulted into decrease in the
Other Equity and Statement of Profit and Loss.

(i) Under the previous GAAP, the Group received a capital expenditure grant, which was offset against the cost of Property, Plant, and Equipment in
accordance with AS 12. Upon transitioning to Ind AS, the Group adopted the deferred income method for accounting purpose. This adjustment led to

an increase in Property, Plant, and Equipment and the recognition of a corresponding liability for the deferred grant.

(iii) Under the previous GAAP, the Group had retained the carrying value of property, plant, and equipment that was not in use. However, upon
transitioning to Ind AS, the Group has written down the value of these assets to zero.

v’




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

CIN : U40106HR2015PTC075578

Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

(b) Sales, Trade receivable, Inventories and Costs of goods sold i

{i) Under the previous GAAP, the Group did not restate outstanding foreign trade receivables in accordance with AS 21. Upon transitioning to Ind AS,
the Group restated these receivables, making the necessary adjustments to the trade receivables and reflecting the corresponding impact in other
equity.

(i) Under the previous GAAP, the Group incorrectly recognised revenue from the sale of goods and services before the risks and rewards had been
transferred to the customer. Upon transitioning to Ind AS, the Group adjusted its revenue recognition in accordance with Ind AS 115. This adjustment
involved reducing the recognised revenue and making corresponding changes to trade receivables, cost of goods sold, and inventory.

(c) Trade payables
Under the previous GAAP, the Group did not restate outstanding foreign trade payable in accordance with AS 11. Upon transitioning to Ind AS, the
Group restated these payable, making the necessary adjustments to the trade payable and reflecting the corresponding impact in other equity.

(d) Provision for employee benefits

Under previous GAAP, the provision for employee benefits an account of gratuity and leave encashment has been incorrectly recognised and hence,
appropriate adjustments have been made as at Ind AS transition date and during the year ended March 31, 2023. This resulted into decrease in the
Other Equity and Statement of Profit and Loss.

(e) Provision for warranty

Under previous GAAP, the provision for warranty on account of sale of manufactured goods has not been recognised and hence, appropriate
adjustments have been made as at Ind AS transition date and during the year ended March 31, 2023. This resulted into decrease in the Other Equity
and Statement of Profit and Loss.

7 Retained earnings
Retained earnings as at 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023, have been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.

8 Statement of other comprehensive income
Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or
permits otherwise. Items of income and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the Statement of Profit and Loss includes
remeasurements of defined benefit plans, foreign exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations, effective portion of gains and
losses on cash flow hedging instruments and fair value gains or (losses) on FVOC! equity instruments. The concept of other comprehensive income did
not exist under previous GAAP.

L




Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited

CIN : U4D106HR2015PTCO75578

Notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{Allamounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

45 Interest in other entities
Details of subsidiaries which have been consolidated are as follows:

Ownership interest held by the Ownership interest held by the NCI

5.No. Name of the Subsidiaries Country of incorporation Group
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 Saatvik Cleantech EPC Private Limited India 100% = s -
2 Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited India 100% 2 )
3 Saatvik Green USA Inc. usa 100% = 2 -
4 UV Solar Energy Project One Private Limited India 49% - 51% -
5  Ultravibrant Salar Energy Project Two Private India 49% - 51% 3
Limited .
6 Stockwell Alwar Two Private Limited India 49% - 51% -

46 Business combination

A. Acquisition of Subsidiary- Common contrel business combination
On 2 January 2024, the Company has entered into a share purchase agreement with its two of the promoters to purchase 100% shareholding in Saatvik Cleantech EPC
Private Limited [‘Acquiree company'} which was incorporated on 19 December 2022 by the Company but was sold to the two promoters on 21 March 2023, The
consideration for the same was paid through cash and bank, amounting to INR 0.16 million.

As assessed by the management, acquisition of the business meets the criteria for commaon control transaction as per Appendix C of IND AS 103 Business combination since

the Company is contrelled by same parties both befare and after the business combination, Accordingly the Company has accounted the acquisition using the pooling of
interest method as below:

a. 19 December 2022 i.e. incarparation date of the acquiree company has been considered as deemed date of establisment of control for the purpose of accounting under
IND AS 103,

b. fhe assets and liabilties acquired under the transachion have been recorded at boak value and excess of consideration over book value of the net Acquired is presented
as adjustment to capital reserve.

Assets and liabilities of the Saatvik Cleantech EPC Private Limited are consolidated as follows:

Pacticilars Asat31March  Asat31 March Asat 19
2024 2023 December 2022

Assets

Non-current assets

Investment in subsidiaries 0.15

Other financial assets 0.02

Other non-current assets 0.37

Current assets

Inventaries 10.58 - -

Cash and cash equivalents 0.59 2059 0.10

Loans 391 . -

Other financial assats 38.07 0.26 ¥

Current tax asset 7.82 = -

Other current assets 42,00 0.80 -

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Provisions 0.51 -

Current liabilities

Borrowings 0.05 0.05 -

Trade payables 2174 * -

Other financial liabilities 4.15 - -

Provisions 0.56 = -

Contract liahilities 54.68 21.66 #

Other current liabilities 19.45 0.01 .

Net Assets 235 (0.08) 0.10

Retained earning (2.25) 0.16 -

Purchase Consideration . (0.16) (0.16) (D.16)

Capital reserve (0.06) {0.06) {0.06)

Acquisition of subsidiaries- Assets acquisition
During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has entered into multiple transactions through which it has acquired control over various entities. These entities, on
the date of acquisition, contained assets that do nat constitute a business, Therefore, these acquisitions have been accounted for as asset acquisitions,

al

On 29 April, 2023, the Company entered into a share purchase agreement with two of its promaters to acquire 100% of the shareholding in Saatvik Green Energy USA Inc.
The total consideration for this acquisition amounted to INR B,300, paid through cash and bank. The Company has assessed and accounted for this transaction as an asset
acquisition,

b

On August 10, 2023, the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Saatuik Cleantech EPC Private Limited, acquired a 49% shareholding in Stockwell Solar Services
Private Limited, thereby establishing it as a subsidiary due to the controlling interest gained. The total cansideration for this acquisition was INR 49,000 paid through cash
and hank, The Company has evaluated and recorded this transaction as an asset acquisition.

n

On August 1B, 2023, the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Saatvik Cleantech EPC Private Limited, acquired a 49% shareholding in UV Solar Energy Project One
Private Limited, thereby establishing it as a subsidiary due to the cantrolling interest gained. The total consideration for this acquisition was INR 49,000 paid in cash. The &
Company has evaluated and recorded this transaction as an asset acquisition.

o

On 8 September 2023, the Company through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Saatvik Cleantech EPC Private Limited, acquired a 49% sharehelding in Ultravibrant Solar Energy
Project Two Private Limited, thereby establishing it as a subsidiary due to the controlling interest gained, The total consideration for this acquisition was INR 0.05 paid
through cash and bank. The Company has evaluated and recorded this transaction as an asset acquisition.

el

©On March 1, 2024, the Company has acquired a 100% shareholding in Saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited, thereby establishing it as a subsidiary due to the controlling
interest gained, The total consideration for this acquisition was INR 0.1 million paid through cash and bank. The Company has evaluated and recorded this transaction as an
asset acquisition,




Santvik Groen Energy Private Limitad

CIN : U4D106HR2015PTCO75578

Notes forming purt of the financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts are in INR millions, unless otherwise statad)

47  Other stetutory information

31 March 2024
Net Saiii t o {loss) Share In other comprehensive Share in totaf comprehensive
income Incoma
5.No. Name of the entity T
u
Consolidated amount A3 “c;"‘:;“':"'d YO o aen r ”MC;';:':'““ Amount "5® :_“:if”"l"'ﬁdmd Amount
‘Nat Assat rol 5] ofit / (loss)
1 Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited 100% 1,20632 100% 1,002.26 108% (0.16) 100% 1,002.10
2 Sastvik Cleantech EPC Private Limited o% 235 % 229 -B1% 012 0% 241
3 Saatvlk Solar Industries Private Limited 1% 17.02 2% 1893 o% - % 1693
4 santvlk Graen USA Inc. 1% (15.58) 2% {15.45) 73% (0.11) -2% -15.56
UV Solar Energy Project One Private % (059 o won % - i
Limited
Ultravibrant Solar Enargy Project Two
[ ) 3 r
Private Limited = (.70} pid (st e o 73
7 stockwell Awar Two Private Limited 0% 0.03 0% 0.07) o - 0% -0.07
8 Minority Interasts in sll subsidiaries 0% (0.68) 0% 057 0% - 0% 057
Inter-company eliminations /
adjustmants on consalidation - f0.24) o . % : o z
Total 100% 1,207.42 100% 1,004.72 100% (0.15) 100% 1,004.57
31 March 2023
Nat Assots Share in profit or (loss) Shara In other comprehensive Share In tatal comprehensive
intome inconte
5.No. Name of the entity TRt TR YT
8% ol a
Comsoléated  Netassats 4PN GRS AR PIOR g, Comolidsted Amount  Consolidated Amaunt
Mat Assat Profit / {lass) Profit / (loss)
1 Saatvik Green Energy Private Limited 100% 202.97 100% 47.61 100% (0.81) 100% 46.84
2 saatvlk Cleantech ERC Private Limitsd 0% (0.06) 0% (0.16) - - - -
3 saatvik Solar Industries Private Limited = . i = = = = ]
4 Saaltvlk Green USA Inc. -z . % % E = J
UV solar Energy Project One Private R R . R e . :
Limited =
Ultravibrant Solar Energy Project Two . . . - = 5 3 .
Private Limited
7 Stockwell Alwar Two Private Limited E = % & 5 : & o
8 Minority Interests In all subsidiaries = t] % < o
g Intercampany eliminations / X (048) . B R i . .
adjustments an consolidation
Tatal 100% 202.73 100% 47.45 100% (0-81) 100% 46.54

| Dotalls of banami property held
No proceeding has been Initiated or are pending against the Group for holding any banami property under the Banami Transactions {Prohibitians) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and tha rules made theraunder.

H  Title deeds of Immavable Property not held in the name of the Group
There are no immavable proparties (ather than proparties where the Group Is the lessee and the lease agreemants are duly executed In favaur af the Group) title deeds of which are not held in the name of the Group.

Willtul defaulter
The Group has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank ar financlal Institution ar any lender.

v Relationship with struck off companies
The Group has no transactions with the companies struck off under Compantes Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956,

v Compll with d

P! of ar
The Group has not entered inta any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting Impact on current or previous financial year,

vl Utilisation of borrowed funds ahd share premium

The Graup has not advanced or loaned or Invested (either fram borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any other person(s) or entity{les}, including forelgn entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermedlary shali:

a, directly or indirectly fend or Invest In other persons ar entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf af the Group{Uitimate Beneficiaries) ar
b. pravide any guarantee, security or the like to or an behalf of the ultimate beneficiarles.

The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) of entitylies}, including foralgn entities [Funding Party] with the understanding (whether racorded in writing ar otherwise) that the Group shall:
a. diraetly or indirectly lend or Invest In other persons of entities Identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, securlty or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficlarles,

vil  Undisclosed Incoma
There [5 na income surrendered or disclosed as Income during the current or previous year In the tax assessmants under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has nat hean recorded in the books of aceount

will

Datalls of crypto currency or virtual currency
The Graup has not traded or Invested In crypta currency or virtual currency during the current of previous year.

b Valuation of property, plant and equipment, Intanglble assat and investment proparty
The Graup has not revalued its property, plant and equipment {including right-af-use sssets) or Intangible assets or both during the current or previous year,

3 Registration of charges or satisfaction with Reglstrar of Companias
There are no charges or satisfaction which are yat to be registered with tha Registrar of Companies bayond the statutary period.

xl  Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Graup has complied with the refevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (42 of 1999) and the Campanies Act, 2013 for the above transactions and the transactions are not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering Act, 2002
{15 of 2003).

xi

The Graup has not advanced any fund to intermediaries for further advancing to other persan an behalf of uitimate beneficiaries for the year anded 31 March 2024,

The Graup have not advanced or loaned o invested funds ta any other person(s) or entitylies), including farelgn entities (Inter with the that the y shall:
(a) directly or Indlrectly lend or Invast In other persons ar entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ultimate Beneficlaries) or
{b) pravide any guarantee, security or the like ta or an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlarias.

x

&

The Group have npt recelved any fund fram any persan(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or ctherwise) that the Group shall:
v (8) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatspever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficisries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries




Saatvik Green Enargy Private Limitad

CiN : U40106HRI0L5PTCO75578

Notes forming part of the financial statemants for the year ended 31 March 2024
[All amounts are In INR milllons, unless otherwise stated)

The Group malntalns Its accounting records sing a robust software system that Incarporates a cemprehensiva audit trall feature. This feature captures a detalled log of all data changes, ensuring the Integrity and transparency of financlal information. While
the audit trafl was not enabled for certain administrative functions within the SAP application, there is no evidence of any unauthorised or fraudulent activity related to this limitation,

To further enhance security and control, the Group has recently activated the audit trall featurs for SAP spplications and restricted privileged access to the Graup database to 3 limited group of authorised users. These measures reinforce the Group's
commitment to maintaining accurate and refiable financial records.

49 Previous year's figures have baen regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's classificatian / disclasure.

Fnr‘]ivént Bansal E{'cp.- -
Ghastared Accountams .
. Firm registration no:004694N",

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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